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Viridor Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

The directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Principal activity

Viridor Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary companies (together “the Group” or “Viridor”) manages a substantial
proportion of the UK’s waste. Through a flect of Energy Recovery Facilities (ERF) and plastics recycling and teprocessing
plants, our activity supports growth of a regenerative circular economy that seeks to keep resources in use for as long as
possible and recover and regenerate materials at the end of their service life.

Financial highlights

Revenue
Statutory and Underlying £556.1 m (2021: £458.9 m)

Earnings before tax, interest, depreciation and amartisation (EBI'TDA)
Statutory £222.0 m (202!: £170.8 m)
Underlying £224.0 m (2021: £194.8 m)

Profit / loss before tax
Statutory Loss £68.4 m (2021: Profit £53.0 m)
Underlying Loss £66.4 m (2021: Profit £136.3 m)

Underlying eamings arc presented alongside statutory results as the directors believe they assist users of the financial
statements in measuring opcrating performance on a comparabic basis, period to period and is a measure used by management
in making financial, stratcgic and operating decisions. Notc 7 to the financial statcrments provides further detail on
non-underlying items, which are the difference between statutory and underlying performance measurcs.

Other Key performance indicators:

Units 2022 2021

ERF Availability %o 92 92
LEiW tonnage processed and diverted from Landfill Tonnes 3,201,771 3,065,132

Total plastic input to be treated at plastics recyeling Tonnes 85.826 55,780

facilities {PRF)
{ Plastic recetved at polymers reprocessing facilittes i Tonnes 33,180 24,194
LTotal Scope 1 & 2 emissions ] tCO2e 1,921,995 1.863.661
[ Carbon intensity tCO2e/£0.1m turnover 246 259

P

All Injuries Total number of Injuries per 4 6

(Any ijury which results from a work-related activity. 200.000 hours worked

requiring First Aid treatment or beyond.)

Page 2



DocuSign Envelope ID: C5861938-0975-4215-99CF-6D66EBDE23C5
Viridor Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Financial Review

Viridor is delivering sustainable growth in UK recycling and residual waste. With a de-risked infrastructure model, our
revenues from operating asscts are principally backed by profitablc long-term contracts. Viridor is actively seeking
opportunitics to develop its business including (i) additional facilitics in selected regional markets where there is a structural
wastc processing capacity gap, with successful build out of the ERF portfolio, in a2 market showing under-capacity, (ii)
pursuing opportunities to de-carbonise its ERF portfolio, and (iii) the development of new facilitics to process recycled plastics
and polymers, each of which is expected to strongly support future earnings growth,

During the year the Group disposed of it's non-core "Waste’ operations, which included the collections business, the landfill and
landfill gas business and certain recycling contracts and assets. The discontinued business operations made a profit in the year
before tax of £0.6m (2021: £28.3m loss). A net profit before tax on these disposals of £45.0m has been recognised. The
financial review is based on the continuing operations.

Statutory financial performance

Viridor’s statutory results showed loss before tax of £68.4 million (2021: £53.0 million profit). The statutory results include the
impact of non-underlying items Lotalling a net charge betore tax of £2.0 million (2021: £83.3 million). The directors belicve
excluding non-underlying items provides a more useful comparison on business trends and performance.

Underlying financial performance

Viridor’s underlying revenues increased by 21.2% to £556.1 million in the period (2021: £458.9 million). This was in-line with
expectations with a full year of trading from the Avonmouth ERF (commissioned December 2020), improvements in the
operational and commercial performance of the ERFs, and positive macroeconomic tailwinds, in particular in relation to
unhedged electricity revenues left open as part of Viridor’s electricity hedging and risk management policy. Viridor’s
underlying EBITDA was £224.0 million (2021: £194.8 million) an incrcase of £29.2 million (15.0%).

The share of JV post-tax profit has decrcased by £9.1 million (56.6%) to £6.9 million this year.

Net finance costs

During the year net finance costs were £218.9 million (2021: £26.9 million). Notional interest was recognised relating to
pensions net interest credit of £0.3 million (2021: net interest credit £0.3 million) and service concession arrangement interest
receivable of £13.2 million (2021: £13.4 million).

Non-underlying items

Non-underlying items for the year were a charge of £2.0 million before tax (2021: charge of £83.3 million) and a
nen-underlying tax credit of £41.5 million (2021: charge of £12.7 million, was recognised, which also included a
non-underlying deferred tax charge of £42.7 million in relation to an cnacted change to future tax rates).

Further details arc set out in note 7 to the financial statcments.

Dividends
Virider paid dividends of £54.4 million during the year (2021: £Nil million).

Capital investment

Viridor’s property, plant & cquipment investments in the period was £89.6 million ¢2021: £118.3 milhion). The majority of the
expenditure during the year relates to the Avonmouth Resource Recovery Centre.
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Viridor Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Liquidity and dcbt profile
Cash holdings were £174.6 million (2021: £106.2 million).
The loans from the parent company were repaid during the year and replaced with external borrowings following a refinancing,

Vitidor's lease obligations were £54.0 million (2021: £96.9 million) the reduction is mainly due to the disposal of discontinued
operations.

The key terms of the Group's borrowing facilities are summarised as follows at 31 March 2022:

Facility Maturity Amount drawn down
Senior:
Private placement £1,585m March 2043 £1,585m
Facility A £780m Scptember 2033 £759m
Facilitcy B £120m Septemnber 2027 £120m
Revolving credit facility £65m Scptember 2027 £nil
DSR Revolving credit facility  £65m September 2027 Enil

The current financial arrangements inciude a [inancial covenant requiring a minimum Debt Service Cover Ratio (DSCR) of
1.05x. The first testing date of the financial covenant is for the twelve months ended 31 March 2023 and then cvery Half Year
thereafter, on a rolling twelve months basis. However, the Group tested this financial covenant post year end and had
substantial headroom aver this covenant. Further, the Group projects to comfortably exceed this mimmum value for at least the
period until 31 March 2024

The Group defines Net Debt as tolal borrowings {including current and non-current borrowings as shown in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position) Icss cash and cash equivalents.

31 March 31 March

20922 2021
£m £m

Current borrewings 57.1 20.6
Non-current borrowings 24313 1,539.7
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {174.6) (106.2)
Net Debt 2,313.8 1,454.1

The gearing ratio of the group as measured by Total debt over Total Equity at 31st March 2022 was 2.4 (2021: 2.1).

Pensions
The Group participates in both defined contribution and defined benefit pension schemes.

During the year, as part of the salc of our collections business and a number of recycling assets to Biffa Waste Scrvices
Limited, one of the Group’s two defined benefit pension schemes, including full responsibility for the related assets and
liabilities, was transferred to Biffa Waste Services Limited. As a result of the transfer the Group recognised a non-underlying
settlernent loss of £1.8 million, which represented the scheme assets at the date of transfer.

As at 31 March 2022 the Group's defined benefit pension scheme was in surplus and in accordance with IFRIC 14 not
recognised on the balance sheet. (2021 two defined benefit pension schemes showing a surplus). Further details of pensions
schemes are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
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Viridor Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Business model
Vindor’s business model is split between our Encrgy Recovery Facilities, and our Polymers reprocessing business.

Energy Recovery Facilities

Our Encrgy Recovery Facilities are vital in supporting the UK’s ambition to reduce and recover the energy content of waste in
an efficient and effective manner, helping to reduce the impact of waste on climate change. After reducing, reusing and
recycling as much as possible, our ERFs across the UK provide the infrastructure to efficiently recover energy from residual
waste, converting it to electricity, and diverting waste away from landfiil,

Polymers reprocessing

Our Polymers business produces high quality recycled plastics in pellet and flake. These materials are produced to tight
specifications and offer consistent properties so they can be used in a series of packaging and industrial applications; clearly
dcmonstrating the circular economy in practice. We have a significant share of the UK's recovered plastic market, supplying
high quality recycled plastic to buyers within the UK and Europe. Recycled plastics emit 83% less carbon emissions than
primary; conserving natural resources versus crude oil and reduces waste to landfill and the environmental impact of waste
processing and manufacture from virgin matcrials.

Markets/Trends

Viridor’s Energy From Waste (“ERF™) business benefits from strong Waste and Power market fundamentals.

A structural capacity gap [or combustible residual waste in the UK underpins strong demand for ERF processing capacity and
gate fees received. Combined with 1) a continually rising Landfill Tax (RPI indexed), ii) rcduced appetite from other countrics
to receive UK waste and iii) largely long-term index linked fuel supply contracts, this means the outlook for Viridor’s existing
ERF flcet and pipeling remains attractive.

In addition to providing waste processing capacity, Viridor’s ERFs provide a reliable source of bascload power supply which
complements the increasing share of non-dispatchable capacity on the UK grid. Viridor has benefited from recent elevated
power prices and is well placed to continue to do so as trends such as electrification of heat and transport are forecast to
increase demand for power in the UK.

Carbon Capture, Usage and Storage

In June 2019, the UK govemment signed into law a commitment to achieve net zero greenhouse gas emissions by 2050. For
the waste sector - currently the UKs 6th largest emitter, deploying CCS on Energy from Wastc (EfW) plants is currently the
only viable pathway for decarbonisation of the sector. As such, CCS is a strategic priority as part of Viridor’s plan to become
the UK’s {irst net negative waste management company by 2045, Independent research carried out by Eunomia, commissioned
by Viridor, shows the pathway tor CCUS deployment for the EfW sector. With many EfW incineration plants being of similar
design, the reproducibility of CCUS deployment is strecamlined. This will enable the industry to transfer learnings between
CCS projects and create a pipeline for bascload CO2,

Runcorn is the UK’s largest EfW facility processing 950kT of waste annually, producing ~612GWh of power, ~90MWth heat
and 940k Tpa of CO2 per year. As one of the largest projects in thc HyNet cluster, it will provide critical baseload CO2 supply
to underpin investment in the cluster. We are currently exploring the deployment of CCS on our other facilitics in Scotland and
Wales. Viridor is working closcly with the government as part of the industrial carbon capture waste expert group, 1o develop
the waste sector business model o ensure the waste sector can deliver CCS at best value for money in the timetable that
Government has set out,

Ending the UK’s reliance on plastic waste export

New independent research conducted by global sustainability activator Anthesis and commissioned by Viridor, has revealed
the amount of plastic packaging ending up in household recycling bins is set to increase by 45% by 2035. This increase will be
driven by policy reforms designed to drive up stagnating recycling rates. Around 2.3Mt of plastic packaging is currently used
in the UK of which only 54% (1.3Mt) is collected for recycling.

As part of our circularity objectives we are committed to ending our export of plastic waste. In March 2022, Viridor's
Avonmouth plastics reprocessing centre was officially opened. It is designed to process 80,000 tonnes of plastic every year -
more than 1.6 billion plastic bottles, tubs and trays. The plant will enable Viridor to recycle more than 90% of the plastics it
previously exported from thc UK. We will continuc to work with industry and government stakeholders to cxpand our
operations to hard-to-recycle materials, and 1o extract plastics from general waste and drive novel reprocessing techniques as
part of our circularity objectives.
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Viridor Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Strategy
Our vision is to be the UK’s leading innovator of resource recovery and recycling, transforming waste for a climate-positive
future. This vision drives our purpose, of building a world wherc nothing goes to waste.

This has been the first full year of ownership by funds advised by KKR. To achieve our vision and purpose, the ongoing
strategy is one which is primarily focussed on the Energy Recovery Facility (ERF) and Polymer reprocessing businesses.
During the year the recycling, collections, landfill and landfill gas businesses were disposed. With our sharcholders” support
we are positioned to invest further and continue to build infrastructure backed by long term contracts.

Our Avonmouth Resource Recovery Centre was officially opened during the year. This facility is a UK first co locating
plastics and ERF facility in one building and the UK’s largest multi-polymer plastic recycling plant. The Avonmouth ERF
diverts 320,000 tonnes of non-recyclable househeld waste from landfill every year, generating over 300 GWh of elecinicity per
year, enough to power 84,300 homes.

The ERF fleet continues to perform well and achieved availability of 92% (2021: 92%), including our joint ventures, excluding
Glasgow, as different technology. Input tonnage for the year was 3,370kt (2021: 3,321kt) and GWh exported were 1,949
{2021: 1,839). During the year we welcomed new minority shareholders to our ERF business which have a strong strategic fit,

With our Avonmouth Resource Recovery Centre we are able to fully recycle in the UK over 90% of the plastics we had
previously exported. We will reprocess over 80,000 tonnes of plastic every year - more than 1.6 billion bettles, tubs, and trays -
creating recycled raw material to retum to the economy. The facility will cut UK plastic waste exports by 8% and is mtegral to
delivering Viridor's commitment to end plastic waste exports and invest in British recycling infrastructure. Plastic recycling at
the facility will save 126,000 tonnes of CO2 emissions per year, the equivalent of taking over 67,000 cars off the road.

The Polymer asscts achieved availability of 86% (2021: 71%) and output tonnage of 64,717 (2021: 46,408).
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Viridor Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Section 172(1) statement

The directors are aware of their duty under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 to act in a way which they consider in good
faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of the members as a whole and, in doing so,
have regard to the matters set out in section 172(1) (a) - (f). Examples of how the Board approaches its decision making, in
light of its obligations undcr section 172, and cnsuring wider stakeholder engagement, are set out below.

The likely conseguences of any decision in the long term

Our strategic objectives are; Leadership in UK waste, Leadership in cost base cfficiency and Driving sustainable growth. Our
strategic objectives, which are set and monitored through a rolling long-term strategic planning process, ensure we work
towards achieving long tcrm growth in a sustainable way. In approving the strategic objeclives, we also consider a host of
external factors, such as the evolving economic and market conditions. The latest sustainability report for Viridor, which
conlains information on our performance against the sustainability development goals, is available on our website
www.viridor.co.uk.

The interests of the Company 's emplovees
We are a responsible employer, focused on employee engagement and communication, promoting a diverse and inclusive
workforce and the continucd development of our people in a safc working environment.

The need to foster the company 's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

We demonstrate continued commitment to delivering quality of service, value for money and satisfaction to our customers. We
continue to foster key strategic and commetcial relationships with our supply chain partners, with a focus on quality and
sustainability, and focused delivery across the catire supply chain.

We have open dialogue and transparent engagement with our regulatory bodies, policy makers and other stakeholders who
shape our social contract.
The impact of the Company s operations on the community and the environment

W are committed to providing educational programmes and community sponsorships and engaging in charity support
initiatives and outreach events across our regions of operation. We maintain a proactive and positive relationship with our key
environmental regulators the Environment Agency, Scottish Environmental Protection Agency (SEPA) and Natural Resources
Walcs.

The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standurds of business conduct

We cnsurc a transparen! approach to conducting business in a responsible manner, with a focus on maintaining good
governance. The codes of conduct and policies which apply across our group are regularly updated to cnsure the highest of
standards are adhered to.

The need to act fairly as between members of the company

Relevant decisions of the Board have been discussed, where relevant, at the mectings of the parent company Board.
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DocuSigr Envelope ID: C5961938-0975-4215-99CF-6D66ERDE23CS
Viridor Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Risk report

Risk management and internal control frameweork
Viridor faces a variety of risks which, should they arise, could materially impact its ability to achieve its strategic priorities.
The cffective management of thesc existing and emerging risks is, therefore, essential to the long-term success of the Group.

Viridor manages risk in accordance with the Group’s integrated risk management framework. A consistent methodology is
applied to the identification, evaluation and management of the principal risks which considers both the likelihood of the risk
occurring and the potential impact from a stakehoider and customer, financial, management effort and reputational perspective.
Principal and other risks are captured in risk registers which are regularly reviewed and challenged. Viridor seeks to reduce its
risk exposure, in line with the desired risk appetite and tolerance levels, through the operation of a robust internal control
environment.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Viridot’s business model exposcs the business to a varicty of external and inicrnal risks. The assessment of principal risks is
informed by the potential impact of macro political, economic and environmental factors. Whilst the ability of the Group to
influence these macro level risks is limited, they continue to be regularly monitored and the potential implications on the
Group are considered as part of the on-going risk assessment process.

For each principal risk we report; Strategic Impact on the long-term priorities affected, Mitigation approach, Net risk after
mitigation (High, Medium, or Low) and net risk change (Increasing, Stable, or Decreasing) and Risk Appetite.

Market and economic conditions

Principal Risks Strategic impact Mitigation Net Risk  Risk Appetite
Macro-economic risks  Long-termn priorities We remain well positioned with High Net We scek to take
impacting commodity  affected: Driving long term contracts supporting the Risk well-judged and
and power prices sustainable ERF business and continual review Stable informed decisions
growth. Volatility in power and negotiation of long term Risk while ensuring plans are
prices has a dircct impact  contracts to support feedstock for  Level in place to mitigate the
on the revenues gencrated  our Polymers business. Encrgy risk potential impact of
by our energy business. management, including forward macro-economic risks.

hedges, is undertaken by a highly
skilled specialist team in line with
the Group’s Encrgy Risk Policy.
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Yiridor Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Law, regulation and finance

Principal Risks Strategic impact Mitigation Net Risk  Risk Appetite

We operate a robust and mature Medium We have the highest
regulatory framework which Net Risk  standards of compliance
ensures compliance, We maintain a I[ncreasing and have no appetite for

Complianec with Laws
and regulations

Long-term priorities
affected: Leadership in UK
waste and Leadership in

cost base

efficiency.Non-compliance

may result in financial

proactive and positive relationship  Risk
with our key environmental Level
regulators the Environment

legal and regulatory
breaches.

penalties, a negative impact Agency, Scottish Environmental

on our ability to operate Protection Agency (SEPA) and

effectively and reputational Natural Resources Wales. We

damage. continue to provide a rolling
programmc of training and
guidance to our staff, contractors
and partners, cnsuning that we
fotlow the Group’s Code of
Conduct.

Non-compliance or Long-term priorities The effective management of health Medium  We have no appetite for

occurrence of avoidable affected: AlLA breach of  and safety risks continues tobea  Net Risk  incidents and have the
health and safety health and safety law could priority. Experienced health and Stable highest standards of
incident lead to financial penalties, safcty professionals are providing  Risk compliance within the
significant legal costs and  advice, guidance and support to Level Ciroup.
damage to the Group’s operational staft.
reputation.
Market risk Long-term prioritics The Group has entered into interest Low Net  We operated a low

affected: Leadership in cost
base Driving sustainable

growth

rate swaps to cffectively fix 97% of Risk
borrowings at fixed rates, lo

manage the risk of fluctuating

interest rates impacting group
performance.

tolerance for interest
rate risk. We have a
strong degree of
structural protection
against inflation,
through inflation-linked
gate fees, and
incremental hedging of
our inflation exposure to
lock-in fong-term rates.
Our hedging policies are
subject to regular risk
committee and treasury
review,

Liquidity risk Long-term priorities

affected: All

The Group maintains facilitics that Low Net
are designed to ensure significant  Risk
available funds for opcrations,

planned expansions and facilities

equivalent to at least one year’s

forecast requircments at all times,

with reasonable hcadroom for

contingencies.

We have no appetite for
liguidity risk and ensure
that we always ensure
availability of liquidity
throughout ali business
deccisions
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Viridor Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Operating performance

Principal Risks Strategic impact Mitigation Net Risk  Risk Appetite
Poor operating Long-term priorities The increased frequency and Low Net  Wec seck to reduce both
performarnice due to affected: Leadership in UK impact of extreme weather exposes Risk the impact and
extreme weather or wastc.Failure of our assets  our asscts to risk.We seck to Stable likelihood through
climate change to cope with extreme mitigate this risk through our Risk planning and ferecasting
weather conditions may planned capital investment, Level to ensure that measures
lead to an inability to meet emergency resources and are in place to mitigate
our customers’ nceds, contingency planning. We have in the impact on our
environmental damage, place regional adverse weather operations.
costs and reputational management strategics aimed at
damage. reducing disruption to site

operations and transpart logistics.

Busimess interruption or Long-term priorities We maintain detailed contingency Medium
significant operational  affected: Leadership in UK  plans and incident management Net Risk
failures/ incidents waste and Driving procedures which are reviewed Stable
sustainable growth.Business regularly, and asscls are managed  Risk
interruption caused by through a programme of planned  Levcl
defects, outages or fire and preventive maintenance and
could impact the effective management of stores.

availability and
optimisation of our ERFs
and Polymer facilities

We operate a low
tolerance for significant
operational failurc and
incidents and seck to
mitigate these risks
where possible,

Difficulty in Long-term prioritics The recent pandemic and impact of Medium
recruitment, retention  affected: Failure to have a Brexit have impacied the UK Net Risk
and development of workforce of skilled and labour market and availability of  Incrcasing

appropriatc skills, which motivated individuals will  labour for operational roles is tight. Risk
are required to deliver  detrimentally impact all of Our HR Strategy continues tobe  Level
the Group’s strategy our strategic priorities. We  embedded and a range of initiatives

need the right people in the taking account of current

right places to innovate, employment market conditions

share best practice, deliver  have been delivered during the year

synergies and move the to attract, retain and develop our

Group forward. employees. Succession plans are in

place for scnior positions.

We cnsure the
appropriate skills and
experience arc in place
with succession plans
providing adequate
resilicnce.

Failure of information  Long-term priorities We operate a mature and embedded Medium

technology systems, affected: Leadership in UK governance framework over the Net Risk

management and waste. Failure of our ‘business as usual’ IT environment Incrcasing

protection including information technology and major project impiementations  Risk

cyber risks systems, due to inadequate  aligned to 1SO27001 standards. Level
internal processes or Disaster recovery plans are in place

cxternal cyber threats could for corporate and operational
result in the business being  technology and thesc are regularly

unable to operate revicwed and tested. Cyber threats
effcctively and the loss of  comntinue to increase in volume and
data. This would have a sophistication. These risks arc
detrimental impact on our  mitigated by a strong information
customers and result in security framework aligned to
financial penaltics and guidance issued by the National
reputational damage. Cyber Security Centre (NCSC).

We seck to minimise the
risk of information
technology failurc and
cyber securily threats to
the kowest level without
detrimentally impacting
on business opcrations
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Viridor Limited
Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Capital investment

Principal Risks Strategic impact Mitigation NetRisk Risk Appetite
Failure or increased cost Long-term priorities All capital projects are subject to a  High Net  Investment activitics are
of capital affected: Leadership in UK robust business case process which Risk taken on an informed
projects/exposure Lo waste and Driving includes challenge and risk Increasing basis with risks weighed
contract failures sustainable growth.Inability modelling over key assumptions.  Risk against appropriate

to successfully deliver our We develop strategic partnerships  Level relurns,

capital programme may with constructors and projects are

result in increased costs and delivered using skilled project
delays and detrimentally management resources

impacts our ability to complimented by senior oversight
provide top class customer and leadership.

service and achicve our

growth agenda.

Ownership Structure

On 315t March 2022, Viridor Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary of Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. L.P. (“KKR™). KKR
arc the ultimate controlling party and are invested through it’s two investment funds, KKR Glebal Infrastructure 11T and KKR
Global Impact.

KKR is a leading global investment firm, cstablished in 1976, that offers alternative asset management as well as capital
markets and insurance sofutions, KKR’s Privatc Equity platform invests in and partners with industry-leading franchises and
companies poised for significant improvement or growth that attract high-quality management teams. KKR made its
investment into the Group through Planets UK Bidco Limited.

Incorporated on 27th February 2020, Planets UK Bidco Lid made its acquisition of the Viridor group on 8th July 2020 when
Pennon Group PLC disposed of its stake in Viridor Limited.

Board of Directors

On 12th October 2020, Kevin Bradshaw was appointed as Group CEO. Kevin brings over 20 ycars of senior leadership
expericnee to Viridor having previously served as CEO of Northgate ple, CEOQ of Wyevale Garden Centres, MD of Avis
Budget Group UK and MD of Enterprise Information, Reuters. Kevin brings a strong track record of delivering transformation
and growth in complex, capital intensive businesses.

On 4th September 2020, Nick Maddock was appointed as Group CFO. Nick was previously Chief Financial Officer of SIG plc,
the listed specialist distributor of building materials. Prior wo that, Nick was the Chief Financial Officer of the rctirement
housebuildet, McCarthy & Stone ple, leading the November 2015 TPO on behalf of its private cquity invesiors.

On 4th September 2020, lan Wakelin was appointed as Chairman. lan has 25+ years’ experience in the waste industry having
been Chief Exccutive Otficer of Biffa plc, leading the IPO of the business in 2016, He was previously co-founder and Chief
Executive Officer of Greenstar UK, a waste management and recycling business which was acquired by Biffa pic in 2010 and
brings a significant expertise in wasle management to the company’s Board of Directors.

On 4th September 2020, Tara Davies was appointed as Investor Director (Representative of KKR). Ms. Davies joined KKR in
2016 and is a Partner, Global Head of Core Infrastructure, and Co-Head of European Infrastructure. Ms. Davies is a member of
the Infrastructure Investment Committec and Infrastructurc Portfolio Management Committee. Ms. Davics is currently on the
Board of Directors of Telxius, a global tower and cable company based in Spain: X-Elio, a global solar developer based in
Spain and John Laing, a global PPP platform. Ms. Davies is also Deputy Board Member of Finnish DSO Canma. Ms. Davies
also sits on the board of the Global Infrastructure Investor Association, an association that promotes private investment in
Infrastructure. Ms. Davics has spent over 20 years in the global infrastructure industry working in both Sydney and London.

On 4th September 2020, James Gordon was appointed as Investor Director (Representative of KKR). Mr. Gordon joined KKR
in 2018 and is a member of the Energy & Infrastructure team, focusing on investments across EMEA. He currenily serves on
the Board of Directors of FiberCop S.p.A., ADNOC 0il Pipelines LLC. Prior to joining KKR, Mr. Gordon spent over a decadc
at Macquari¢ in London, where he was involved in a broad range of infrastructure transactions.
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Viridor Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Environmental

Viridor continues to build on our strengths and achicvements in sustainability under a unifying framework built on
environment, social and governance principles. Our first ESG strategy since our purchase by funds advised by KKR has been
launched and can be found on our websitc www.viridor.co.uk. Gur environtmental targets are:

» Decarbonisation - to be net zero across all our operations (scopes | and 2) by 2049 and be a climate positive business by
2045.
« Circularity - to achieve circularity in the four major plastics by 20235.

Decarbonisation
Viridor has published its decarbonisation roadmap, to achieving net zero and set out cur 5 key comimitments:

= Reduce direct emissions from all our core operations

» Maximise the amount of wastc that is recycled

+ Capture and store carbon emissions from our strategic sites

= Generate negative emissions by expanding carban capture to our national network of sites, alongside exploring new products
that can be created from CO2 waste stream

= Supply more homes and businesses with clean heat

By minimising the cmissions we generate and capturing the emissions that remain, Viridor can achieve net zero emissions by
2040 - a full decade ahead of the UK cmissions target. Decarbonising will require the use of CC technologies and the CCS
infrastructure that the UK Govermnment has initiated around the country and where our facilitics are strategically located.

Circularity

Viridor has published its circularity roadmap to achicving a circular plastics economy. This 1s an expansion on the second step
of our Decarbonisation ambition’s roadmap, as it is crucial to keep plastics in the economy to achieve decarbonisation. Both
circular economy and decarbonisation are interlocked and crucial to achieve a net-zero future by 2040.

QOur 5 key commitments on circular economy ambition:

» End pilastic waste export

» Drive an infrastructure market for recyciing

* Expand operations to hard-to-recycle materials

= Extract plastics from general waste and drive novel reprocessing tcchniques

= Drive innovation and regulatory improvement to achieve complete plastic circularity

Building from these commitments, Viridor wil} end our export of plastic waste and focus on reprocessing all four major forms
of plastics, working with industry and Government to achieve fully circular recycling for polyethylene terephthalate (PET),
high- and low-density polyethylene (HDPE and LDPE) and polypropylene (PP) by 2025. Using CO: captured from our EfW
plants we will target the end of plastic dependency on fossil fuels by 2040.

As a sector whose economics arc driven by policy, therc is a critical and valuable role that Governments national and local can
play in helping to build this integrated circular cconomy, spanning the gaps between companics and sectors. Building a world
where nothing goes to waste cannot be achieved in isolation.

Environmental performance

We keep a strong focus on our environmental performance and responsibilities, working closely with environmental regulators
{the Environment Agency, Scottish Environment Protection Agency and Natural Resources Wales) to maintain high standards
of operations and compliance, and to further reduce the risk of pollution incidents. In addition to the services Viridor offers its
custormnetrs for the safe management, treatment and disposal of hazardous wastes, our environment policy clearly commits us to
minimising hazardous wastes used or produced and any impacts arising, as well as any (non-greenhouse gases) emissions to
air.
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Viridor Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Employees & Gender diversity

Ensuring everyone gets home safe

Our people are critical to everything we do. Without people, Viridor would simply cease to function. If we are to build a world
wherc nothing goes to waste, we need to creatc and maintain an environment where our people arc safe, well and grow.
Looking after people’s safety and wellbeing is not just a moral imperative, it is good business. Keeping our people safe and
well gives confidence to our colleagues to stay with Viridor, keeps facilitics operating, and attracts peoplc to join us.

During the year Covid-19 continued to dominate our safety and wellbeing focus and we continued to communicale with
colleagues at every stage, adapting and evelving our approach as restrictions changed. We kept our teams safe and enforced the
sirictest protocols at sites to look after our operational tcams, who continued to deliver the essential service throughout the
pandemic.

We have already started down the road to health, safety & wellbeing excellence and targeted being the leader in the UK waste
industry by 2025. Our support divides into physical and mental health to enable our people to be their best. Our health, safety
& wellbeing programme, HomeSafe, is designed to ensure we not only value our own safety and wellbeing, but also take
responsibility for the satety and wellbeing of others.

As we look ahead, we want to achieve more. Wc want to continually strive to make our operations and working environments
safer and healthier for our colleagues, partners, customers and communities. To do this effectively, HomeSafe must continue to
evolve, and as such, we are committed to:

« Re-define a clear SHEQS purpose, vision and mission which aligns with our ESG ambition,

= Revisit the foundations of HomeSafe, looking closely at our sharcd behaviours and rules to make sure they are fit for our
opcrations

+» Take ownership of the HomeSafe brand, crcating messaging and visual alignment with the Viridor brand purposc and vision

= Develop a 2025 HomeSafe roadmap and strategy that will not only prevent harm but, empower us to become the health,
safety and wellbeing benchmark in the UK waste sector

+ Launch, communicate, and fully embedd the next evolution of HomeSafe which will support more localised leadership,
ownership and engagement.

Talent and performance

We focus on optimising and broadening collcagues' performance within the company to attract, grow and retain the best talent.
Our processes witl help us to manage succession; to identify, select, develop and retain people to progress within our business
in the following ways:

« Performance appraisal reviews that incorporate 360 feedback - with all performance objcctives aligned to strategic goals and
set against our business and ESG strategies to ensure that our colleagues are all pulling in the same direction as one team.

= Bonus Incentive Schemes based on high performance - to ensure our cotlcagues can share the rewards of their hard work.

» Profit Share Scheme to ensure all our colleagues benefit from our collective success.

We will build on this to ensure that we can develop and retain people by addressing the following:

» [dentifying our internal emerging talent and supporting their development in the organisation.

» Develop career pathways so everyone in the organisation can design individual development plan for their ambitions.

« Develop succession planning, especially for critical roles, to ensure that we can safcly maintain our round-the-clock
operations.

« Develop a diversity and inclusion strategy to actively move our colleague population towards a more balanced representation
of the diversity of the communities in which we work. Vitally, this will include a strategy on gender pay gap.

» Commit to becoming a living wage employcr by financial year 2022/23 cnsuring everyone that works for Viridor is paid
fairly.

Great place to work

As well as effective communication, we need to create trust and engagement among our collcagues. Without this, our purposc
and values will struggle to gain traction needed. In 2021 we carried out our first colleague wide trust and engagement survey
since becoming a standalone business. This survey took place after a time of considerable change in the busincss and forms the
baseline against which we will measurc our progress in our ambition to be classed as a ‘Great place to work’ by the end of
financial year 2024.
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Viridor Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 {continued)

Gender Diversity

At Viridor, we are committed to not only eliminating discrimination but also creating a diverse workforce. We believe that
everyone should be treated with equal respect and dignity and should have access to the same opportunities to develop
professionally and personally within the Company. We believe a diverse workforce creates a positive and open culture, we
celcbrate differences and value everyone’s contributions to the everyday workings of the Company. We recognise and value
each individual’s own personal background and skillset and we strive to grow talent and reach full potential.

We measure gender balance from the top down and by function across Viridor. We are adopting some big changes in our
policies to help attract and retain our female talent, including the introduction of more progressive family friendly policies
which are rcpresentative of our business today. QOur early carecers programme focuses on recruiting a select number of junior
talent into our business providing them with a clear development programme, designed around their skillset and personal
interests. By recruiting a sclect number of diverse junior talent we ean dedicate the time and resource to developing their
carcers and create a pipeline of future leaders who will stay with us for the long term.

We remain commiitted to creating an inclusive workspace and we arc focussing on the following action plan:

* Review our Graduate assessment programmes to ensure they are morg inclusive and enable female talent to be successful and
equally able to progress through different roles.

« Promote our female talent and actively support their growth and development.

*» Revicw the Recruitment process, where possible ensure female representation through all stages, including at interview stage.
« Continue to cnsure pay parity is maintained when recruiting new roles across the business.

» Continue to review on gender representation at each level, from the Executive Leadership Team though the organisation, to
identify any arcas of weakness or potential barriers o progression

Number of employces split by gender as at 31 March:

Year Ending 3§ March 2022
Male Female Total
Number 9% Number S Number %40
Dareciors 4 032% 1 0.03%¢ 5 0.40%
Senior managers 9 0.728, 2 0.16% 11 0.88%
All others 1028 8249, 206 16.48% 1234 98.72%,
Total 1041 83.28% 09 16.72% 1250 100.00%
Year Ending 31 March 2021
AMale Female Toral
Number % Number %% Number %%
Directors 4 0.15% 1 0.04% 5 0197,
Sernor managers 11 0.45% 2 0.07% i3 0.499¢
All others 2130 7987 519 19.46% 1649 99.33%
Total 2145 80.43% 522 19.57% 2667 100.00%

We define “Senior manager’ as someone who is part of our Executive Leadership Team, reporting to Kevin Bradshaw our
Chief Executive Officer. They have responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, and are an
employee of the company.

Pagc 14



DocuSign Envelope ID; C5961938-0975-4215-99CF-6DB6EBDE23C5
Viridor Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Social

Our people are not just our employees, they are active members of the communities where we work. Our ambition is for our
purpose to be greater than weork; carried into wider society. We aim to equip colleagues o carry on building a wotld where
nothing goes to waste within their communities. Through this we support our communities to be part of and share our purpose.

We deliver this through our team of Social Value and Community Benefits Officers, onsite education centres, our digital tools
and empowered colleagues. With a large local authority client base, cnsuring our activities deliver maximum local social value
is a key driver. Site based Social Value and Community Benefits Officers use our dedicated onsite and virtual education
centres combined with site tours to support local education and community groups to understand how we manage their waste
safely and responsibly operate within strict environmental limits.

Before COVID-19 our community engagement reached around 8,000 people per year. During COVID-19 pandemic we had to
adopt and embed new digital tools, leading to highly effective engagement increasing to almost 20,000 pcople in financial year
2021/22. Qur target is to double that in the financial year 2022/23.

All colleagues arc cncouraged to take one velunteering day per year, and these have included tree planting, litter picking and
beach cleaning.

All Viridor facilitics are permitted and monitored by the relevant environmental authorities. For us and our communities, it is
critical we operate to the highest standards and continuc to improve. In financial year 2022/23 we will sct a new target for our
cnvironmental performance, and make sure that all Viridor sites will achieve an Environmental Agency Permit rating between
Bands A and C, inclusive.

Although the Viridor considers the inherent risk of encountering issues of modern slavery within its business, supply chains
and strategic affiliations to be low, it is nonetheless an issue that the Group and the Directors take very seriously. The Group’s
full statement under section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 for the period ended 31 March 2022 is published on its website
https://www.viridor.co.uk/.

Forward-looking statements

This strategic report, consisting of pages 2 to 15, contains forward-looking statements regarding the financial position; results
of operations; cash flows; dividends; financing plans; business strategies; operating efficiencies; capital and other expenditures;
competitive positions; growth opportunities; plans and objectives of management; and other matters. These forward-leoking
statements including, without limitation, those relating to the future business prospects, revenues, working capital, liquidity,
capital needs, interest costs and income in relation to the Group, wherever they occur in this strategic report, are necessarily
based on assumptions reflecting the views of the Group, as appropriate. They involve a number of risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking
statements shouid, therefore, be considered in the light of relevant factors, including those set out in this section on principal
risks and unccrtaintics,

Approved by the Beard on 16 September 2022 and signed on its behalf by:
Docuslgmd by:
L e
o
SRABARMCBSDEARD. .. ..o, ...

N Maddock
Director

DocuSignad by:
l U{Mh Hrugfu,s
25 I ZBICSRTBAGALTE ;= - e

L Hughes
Company secretary
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Directars' Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

The directors present their report and the consalidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Directors’ report is prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and regulations madc
thereunder. Tt compriscs pages 16 to 18 as well as any matters incorporated by reference. Information regarding Viridor,
including events and its progress during the year, cvents since the year-end and likely fiiture developments is contained in the
strategic report set out on pages 2 to 15 of this Annual report.

In addition, and in accordance with s414C of the Companies Act 2006, the strategic report contains a fair, balanced and
comprehensive review and analysis of the development and performance of the Company's busincss during the year, the
position of the Company’s business at the end of the year, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company (including cnvironmental, social and governance (ESG) risks), and financial and non-financial key performance
indicators {including cnvironmental matters and employce matters).

The subsidiaries of the Company are listed in note 22 to the financial statements.

Financlal results and dividend
The loss on ordinary activities after charging non-underlying items and taxation was £65.5 million (2021: £21.3 million profit).

The Dircctors do not recommend a final dividend (2021: £nil) and £54.4 million (2021: £nil) dividends werc paid during the
year.

The review of performance on pages 2 to 15 analyses the Group’s financial results in more detail and sets out other financial
information.

Directors' of the group
The directors, who held office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were as follows:

K Bradshaw
T Davies
J Gordon
N Maddock
I Wakelin

No Director has, or has had, a material interest, directly or indirectly, at any time during the year.

Directors’ liabilities

The Directors have the benefit of the indemnity provisions contained in the Company’s Articles and the Company has
maintained throughout the vear Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance for the benefit of the Company, the Directors and its
Officers. The Company has entered into qualifying third party indemnity arrangements for the benefit of all its Directors in a
farm and scope which comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and which were in force throughout the year
and remain in force.

Stakeholder engagement

We are committed to carrying out our business in a responsible way and remain focused on continued dialogue our
stakcholders. We continue to engage actively with all our stakeholders, including our customers, our communities, our pcople
and our suppliers, as well as with our investors. Qur continuous engagement allows stakeholders to provide feedback on the
matters they consider to be important and any issues which they would like to be addressed.

We sct out below some of the most significant decisions taken during the year and how stakeholder interests were taken into
account.

COVID-19 response

The impacted stakeholders were Employees, Customers and Sharcholders. Factors taken into consideration were; Health,
safety and wellbeing of employees and cuslomers, Continued delivery of essential services and Maintaining a solid liquidity
position.

The outcome was the Directors support for the measures introduced by the management team.
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Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Strategic plans

The impacted stakcholders were Sharcholders, Employees, Customers and Communities Factors taken into consideration were;
Generation of value for shareholders, Continucd delivery ol high standards of service to customers and Regulatory and
environmental compliance.

The outcome was Directors agreement of Strategic plans.

Employment policies and employee involvement
The average number of employees during the year was 1,856 (2021: 2,733). Details of the related costs can be found in note 15
to the financial staterments.

Employee consultation is maintained via various means including formalised trade union processes, consultative committees,
and specific working groups. All these are chaired by senior management of the Group, with representatives drawn from all
functional arcas as appropriate. These forums, togcther with regular meetings, are used to ensure that employees are kept up to
date with the Group’s business performance and financial and economic factors affecting performance. Information is cascaded
regularly to all employees to provide them with important and up to date information about key cvents.

A peiformance appraisal system exists for all non-manual staff and managers. Viridor uses a range of incentivisation
arrangements as appropriate to each group of workers and job satisfaction is supported by encouraging role changes wherever
possible within the Group to help employees gain broad experience of business activities. Viridor, as & “good employcr’, has
operated several “family-friendly’ policies during the year, which exceed statutory requirements.

Occupational health and safety remain key elements of Viridor’s assessment of risk management. Training in skills acquisition
and health and safety continues to ensure that employces have the knowledge and cxpertise to undertake their jobs to the best
of their ability.

Viridor is committed to cnsuring that no current or future employee is disadvantaged becausc of age, gender, religion, colour,
ethnic origin, marital status, sexual orientation or disability. Viridor’s equal opportunities policy ensures that there is no bias or
discrimination in the availability of training and opportunities for career development and promotion. [n particular, Viridor
welcomes applications for cmployment from disabled persons and makes special arrangements and adjustments as necessary to
cnsurc that disabled applicants arc treated fairly when attending for intervicw or for pre-employment aptitude tests. Wherever
possiblc, the opportunity is taken to retrain pcople who become disabled during their employment in order to rnaintain their
employment within Viridor.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy report
The Streamlined Energy and Carbon Report (SECR) is reported within the consolidated financial statements of Planets UK
Midco Limited (the largest Group in which this Group's results are consolidated), for the year ending 31 March 2022.

Financial risk management policy
The Group’s financial risk management policy is sct out at note 4 of the financial stalements.

Financial instruments
Details of the Group’s financial instruments are provided in note 2 and note 20 of the financial statements.

Political donations
No political donations were made, or political expenditure incurred, and no contributions were made to a non-EU political

party.
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Directors’' Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. At the time of the approving the financial statements the
dircctors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for a period to at least 31 March 2024 (the period of management’s assessment).

When making this assessment, management considers whether the Group will be able to maintain adequate liquidity headroom
above the level of its borrowing facilities and to operate within the financial covenants applicable to those facilities which will
be measured at 30 of September 2022, 31 March 2023, 30 September 2023 and 31 March 2024.

As of 31 March 2022, the Group had £2.615b of committed borrowing facilities, of which £2.464b was drawn and with
maturity ranging between September 2027 and March 2043. In addition, Viridor Limited is a guarantor to the RCF in Planets
UK Bidco Limited (the immediate parent of the Group) of £200m of which £97.5m was drawn at 31 March 2022 but has been
subsequently repaid. Thercfore, in preparing their assessment management has considered the covenant associated with
facilities in both Viridor limited and Plants UK Bidco limited for the period until 31 March 2024,

For their assessment, management has prepared two cash flow forecasts - a basc case and a downside casc which cover the
period to 31 March 2024. The downside case acknowledges a reduction in volume throughput during the assessment petiod.
The base case and the downside case have significant headroom against available facilitics. A reversc stress test has been
performed to identify a scenario which could exhaust available facilities or breach of covenants.

The forecasts are most sensitive to a reduction in revenue. A substantial proportion of Viridor revenues is contracled revenues
with local authorities with prices fixed 12 months ahcad. Thus, for the purpose of the reverse stress test management
considered the non-contracted revenue. The test demonstrates that there would have to be a very significant fall in uncontracted
revenues to impact the ability to continuc as a going concern - cither through a lack of liquidity or a breach of the covenant
noted above. Management consider that the likelihood of this scenario is remote.

Therefore, the directors are confident in the ongoing resilience of the Group, and its ability to continue in operation and meet
its commitments as they fall due over the going concern period. Accordingly, the directors adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any rclevant
audit information and to establish that the company's auditor is aware of that information. The directors confirm that there is no
relevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditor is unaware.

Reappointment of auditors
The auditors Ernst & Young LLP are decmed to be reappointed under section 487(2) of the Companics Act 2006.

Events after the reporting period

Further details of events afier the reporting period are set out at note 39 of the financial stalements.

Approved by the Board on 16 September 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by:
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N Maddock
Director

DocuSigned by:
' ()fwﬁ Rwl)ﬁbs
J2BACARTRARALYY. .l

L Hughes
Company sccretary
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Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable United
Kingdom law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to preparc financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have
elected to prepare the group and parent company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. Under company law the directors must not
approvce the financial statetnents unless they are satisficd that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group
and the company and of the profit or loss of the group and the company for that period. In preparing these financial staterments,
the directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies in accordance with TAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

= provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs is insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the group and company financial position
and financial performance;

= in respect of the group financial statements, state whether international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements;

» in respect of the parent company financial statcments, state whether international accounting standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is appropriate to presume that the company and/ or the
group will not continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that arc sufficient to show and explain thc group’s and
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and the
company and cnable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and rcgulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a strategic report and directors” report
that comply with that law and those regulations. The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information included on the company’s website.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF VIRIDOR LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Viridor Limited ('the parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’)
for the year ended 31 March 2022 which comprise Consolidated income statement, Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive income, Consglidated statement of financial position, Consolidated statemen of changes in equity,
Consolidated statement of cash flows, and the related notes 1 to 39 to financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and UK adopted international accounting standards and as regards the parent company financial
statements, as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act Z0086.

In our opinion:

* the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at
31 March 2022 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended,

« the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted International
Accounting Standards;

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted
International Accounting Standards as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006; and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our respansibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independen! of the group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard
and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

{n auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company's ability to
continue as a going concern for the period ending 31 March 2024.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concermn are described in the relevant
sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not
a guarantee as to the group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual
report.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conciusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
+ the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identlified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:
e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or
the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement on page 19, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend 1o liquidate the group or the parent
company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect iregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the
primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the
entity and management.

+  We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable te the company and
determined that the most significant are IAS in conformity with the Companies Act 2006 and compliance with
the relevant direct and indirect tax regulation in the United Kingdom. In addition, the Company has to comply
with laws and regulations relating to its operations, including health and safety, waste management and GDPR.

*  We understood how Viridor Limited is complying with those frameworks by making enguiries of management

and those charged with governance to understand how the company maintains and communicates its policies
and procedures in these areas. We understood any controls put in place by management to reduce the
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opportunities for fraudulent transactions. We assessed the susceptibility of the Company’s financial statements
to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur through inguiry of management and those charged
with governance and meeting with management from various parts of the business to understand where it
considered there was susceptibility te fraud. Through our procedures we determined there to be risks associated
with management cverride of controls and fraud risks in relation to revenue recognition.

+ In relation to management override, our procedures involved enquiries of management and those charged with
governance and journal entry testing, we incorporated data analytics to sample the entire population of journals
to identify specific transactions which did not meet our expectations based on specific criteria as well as manual
consolidation journals and journals indicating significant or unusual transactions based on our understanding of
the business. These procedures included investigating these transactions to gain understanding, challenging
the assumptions, judgements and significant eslimates made by management and testing them back to source
information.

* Inperforming our work over recognition of revenue, we identified that the areas that were particularly susceptible
to fraud were recognition of accrued income on contract revenue, contract revenue subject to IFRIC 12
(Accounting for Service Concession arrangements) and recognition of adjustments made to invoiced revenue.
We have separated the revenue into its appropriate streams and selected a sample of revenue transactions
throughout the period to perform detailed testing. Our procedures included: Validation of transactions back to
contracts, evaluation of appropriateness of assumptions, and where possible, agreeing the transactions 1o an
invoice and cash receipt.

These procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the group financial statements were
free from fraud or error.

+ Based on our understanding of laws and regulations identified above, we designed our audit procedures to
identify noncompliance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures involved agreeing that material
transactions are recorded in compliance with IAS in conformity with the Companies Act 2006. Compliance with
other operational laws and regulations was covered through our inquiry with no indication of non-compliance
identified.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at . This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and far no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

fw L \(""3 (s P

Nick Gomer (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Emnst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Bristol

Date: 16 September 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

Non- Non-
Before non- underlying Before non- underlying
underlying itemns underlying items
items (Note 7) Total items (Note 7) Total
2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021
Continuing operations Note £m £fm £fm £fm £m £m
Revenue 8 556.1 - 556.1 458.9 - 4589
Other income 10 2.6 - 2.6 26.1 - 26.1
Operating costs
Employment costs 8 (71.3) (2.0) (73.3) (71.2) (2.4) (73.6)
Raw materials and consumables used 8 {100.9) - (100.9) {60.4) - (60.4)
Other expenses 8 (162.5) - (162.5) (158.6) (21.6) (180.2)
Profit/(Joss) before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation, impairment
and share of profit from joint ventures 224.0 2.0) 222.0 194.8 (24.0) 170.8
Depreciation and impairment (75.8) - (75.8) (45.3) (12.3) {57.8)
Amortisation and impairment of intangibles (2.6) - {2.6) (2.3) (46.8) {49.1)
Operating profit/(loss) 145.6 2.0) 143.6 147.2 (83.3) 63.9
Finance income 21.8 - 21.8 21.5 - 21.5
Finance costs (240.7) - (240.7) (48.4) - (48.4)
Net finance cost 11 (218.9) - (218.9) (26.9) - (26.9)
Share of profit from joint ventures 23 6.9 - 6.9 16.0 - 16.0
(Loss)/profit before tax (66.4) 2.0 (68.4) 136.3 (83.3) 53.0
Taxation credit/(charge) 12 5.1 (41.5) (36.4) (16.1) 12.7 (3.4)
(Loss)/profit for the year from
continuing operations (61.3) (43.5) (104.8) 120.2 (70.6) 49.6
Discontinued operations
Profit/(loss) aficr tax from discontinued
operations 6 0.6 38.7 34.3 (23.6) (4.7) (28.3)
(Loss)/profit for the year (60.7) (4.8) {65.5) 96.6 (75.3) 213
(Loss)/profit attributable to:
Owners of the company (46.9) 713
Non-controlling interests (18.6) _
__ (655) 21.3

The notes on pages 31 to 93 form an integral part of thesc financial statements.
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Viridor Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

Note
{Loss)/profit for the year

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post employment
benefit obligations 31

Income tax on items that will not be
reclassified 12

Tterns that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Unrcalised gain or loss on cash flow hedges

Share of joint ventures other
comprchensive income before tax 23

Income tax on items that may be
reclassified 12

Total comprehensive (Loss)/income for
the year

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

Owmers of the company
Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 31 to 93 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Non- Non-
Before non- underlying Before non- underlying
underlying items undertying items
items (Note 7) Taotal items (Note 7) Total
2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021
£fm £m £m £m £m £m
{60.7) (4.8) (65.5) 96.6 (75.3) 21.3
1.6 - 1.6 (20.8) - (20.8)
0.1 - 0.1 3.7 - 3.7
1.7 - 1.7 (17.1) - (17.1)
(171.3) - {171.3) {13.4) - (13.4)
- - - i1 - 1.1
439 - 43.9 24 - 24
(127.4) - (127.4) (9.9) - (9.9)
(186.4) (4.8) (191.2) 69.6 (75.3) (3.7)
(168.1) (5.7)
{23.1) -
(191.2) (5.7)
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Viridor Limited

(Registration number: 02456473)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2022

Group Company
31 March 31 March 3t March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 16 316.6 328.5 ~ -
Other intangible gssets 17 37.5 47.2 - -
Property, plant and equipment 18 1,351.9 1,519.5 ~ -
Right of usc assets 19 453 89.2 - -
Derivative financial instruments 26 284 - ~ -
Investments in subsidiaries 22 - - 2,083.9 1,953.6
Investments in joint ventures 23 69.2 69.3 - -
Other non-current assets 21 1,920.4 257.8 1,315.6 360.2
3,7893 2.311.5 3,396.5 2,313.8
Current assets
Inventories 24 39.4 37.0 - -
Trade and other receivables 25 2549 3335 87 113.5
Derivative financial instruments 26 4,1 - - -
Current tax asset - 0.4 6.7 4.4
Cash and cash equivalents 27 174.6 106.2 - 3.6
473.0 4771 154 121.5
Total assets 4,262.3 2,788.6 3,414.9 2,435.3
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 28 (142.6) (155.2) (117.8) (7.7
Derivative finangial instruments 26 (127.2) (2.1) - -
Current tax liability (39.0) - - .
Loans and borrowings 29 (57.1) {20.6) - (31.3)
Provisions 32 (4.0 (49.2) - -
{(369.9) (227.1) (117.8) (49.0)
Non-current liahilities
Loans and borrowings 29 (2,431.3) (1,539.7) - (1,260.8)
Derivative financial instruments 26 (317.9) (44.6) - -
Deferred tax liabilities 12 (63.7) (101.1) - -
Provisions 32 (2.9) (131.1}) - -
Other non-current liabilities 30 - (13.1) - -
(2.815.8) (1,829.6) - {1,260.8)
Total liabilities (3,185.7) (2,056.7) (117.8) (1,309.8)
Net assets 1,076.6 731.9 3,297.1 1,125.5

The notes on pages 31 to 93 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Viridor Limited

(Registration number: 02456473)
Cansolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2022 (continued)

Group Cotmpany

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
Nate £m £m £m £fm

Equity
Share capital 33 (898.2) (898.2) {898.2) (898.2)
Share premium (225.5) (95.2) (225.5) (95.2)
Hedging reserve 138.7 113 - -
Retained eamings and other reserves (321.3) 250.2 (2,173.4) (132.1)
Equity atiributable to owners of the company (1,306.3) {731.9) (3,297.1) (1,125.5)
Non-controlling interests 229.7 - - -
Total equity (1,076.6) (731.9) (3,297.1) (1,125.5)

The profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholder’s equity dealt with in the accounts of the Parent Company is
£2,095.6 million (2021: £20.2 million).

Approved by the Board on 16 September 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Dﬂcll?lﬂl"d by:
sl e
E /'\_"’_
B5BBAS24GBE0F 4Tz - -- - va -

N Maddock
Director

The notes on pages 31 to 93 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Viridor Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

Cash flow Non-
Share Share hedging Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve  reserves earnings Total interests equity
£m £m £m £im £m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2020 898.2 95.2 0.3) - (256.1) 737.0 - 737.0
Profit for the year - - - - 21.3 213 - 213
Other comprehensive income - - {11.0) - {16.0) {27.0) - (27.0)
Total comprehensive income - - (11.0) - 53 (5.7 - (5.7
Share based payment
transactions - - - - 0.6 0.6 - 0.6
At 31 March 2021 898.2 95.2 (11.3) - {250.2) 731.9 - 731.9
Cash flow Non-
Share Share hedging Other Retained controfling Total
capital premium reserve  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
£m £m £fm £m £€m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2021 (As restated,
per note 3) 898.2 95.2 (11.3) - (250.2) 731.9 - 731.9
Loss for the year - - - - (46.9) (46.9) {18.6) (65.5)
Other comptehensive income - - {127.4) - 6.2 {121.2) (4.5) (125.7)
Total comprehensive income - - {127.4) - (40.7)  (168.1) (23.1)  (191.2)
Dividends - - - - (54.4)  (54.4) - (54.4)
Other share premium resetve
movements - 1303 - - - 130.3 - 1303
Share based payment
transactions - - - 1.1 - 1.1 - 1.1
Disposal of nen-controlling
interest in subsidiarics - - - - 665.5 665.5 (206.6) 458.9
At 31 March 2022 898.2 225.5 (138.7) 1.1 320.2 1,306.3 (229.7y 1,076.6

Included in the movement in other comprehensive income in the cashflow hedging reserve are gains reclassified to the income
statement of £0.1m (2021: gains of £0.1m) and fair value losses of £171.2m (2021: £13.5m).

During the year the Group sold a 20% stake in its subsidiary, Viridor Energy (Investments) Limited - a holding company for
the Group's cstablished Energy Recovery Facility (ERF) busingss.

The notes on pages 31 to 93 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

Share Other Retained
Share capital premium reserves earnings Total
£fm £m £m £m £m
At 1 Aprii 2020 898.2 95.2 - 1i1.9 1,i05.3
Profit for the year - - - 20.2 20.2
Total comprehensive income - - - 20.2 20.2
At 31 March 2021 898.2 95.2 - 132.1 1,125.5
Share Other Retained
Share capital premium reserves earnings Total
£m £m fm £m £fm
At 1 April 2021 898.2 95.2 - 1321 1,125.5
Profit for the year - - - 2,095.6 2,095.6
Total comprehensive income - - - 2,095.6 2,0956
Dividends - - - (54.4) (54.4)
Other share premium rescrve movements - [30.3 - - 130.3
Share based payment transaclions - - 0.1 - 0.1
At 31 March 2022 898.2 225.5 0.1 2,173.3 3,297.1

The notes on pages 31 to 93 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Viridor Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/profit for the year ifrom continuing operations

Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Adjustments to cash flows from non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation

Decpreciation and amortisation (discontinucd}
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property plant and equipment
Profit on disposal of discontinued opcrations
Impairment of trade receivables

Finance income (continuing)

Finance income (discontinued)

Finance costs

Finance costs (discontinued)

Share based payment transactions

Share of profit or loss of cquity accounted investees
Income tax expensc

Dividends received

Transfer of pension liabilities to Pennon

Working capital adjustments

Increase in inventories

(Increase)/decrcase in trade and other receivables
Increasc in trade and other payables

Decrease in retirement benefit obligation net of actuarial
changes

Decrease in provisions

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes received/(paid)

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

[nterest received

Dividends received

Acquisitions of property plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangiblc assets

Loans granted to related parties

Repayment of loans by related parties

Proceceds from sale of non-controlling interest

Proceeds on disposal of subsidiarics

Net cash flows from investing activitics

Note

12

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£fm £m £m £m
(104.8) 49.6 2,095.6 20.2
393 (28.3) - -
78.4 107.1 - -
222 34.1 - -
{1.3) 3.7 - -
(38.6) - - -
{0.8) (0.8) - -
(21.8) (21.5) (13.7) (16.8)
0.7) 2.1n - -
240.7 48.4 31.1 374
6.2 6.8 - -
1.1 1.0 - -
{6.9) (16.0) - -
36.4 34 (2.3) (4.4}
- - (2,126.6) (50.0}
- (35.3) - -
2494 150.1 {15.9) (13.6)
(5.9) (7.1 - -
{70.5) (2.8) 108.3 {(59.7)
7.5 43.0 96.4 19.5
- 0.4) - -
(16.7) (13.6) - -
163.8 169.2 188.8 (53.8)
2.9 (4.4) - (43.1)
166.7 164.8 188.8 (96.9)
168 12.4 13.7 9.2
7.0 7.9 2,126.6 50.0
(89.1) (125.1) - -
17.9 5.0 - -
(13.9) 3.1 - -
(1,754.4) - - -
100.9 0.6 - -
461.0 - - -
167.9 - - -
{(1,085.9) (102.3) 2,140.3 59.2

The notes on pages 31 to 93 form an intcgral part of thesc financial statements.

Page 29



DocuSign Envelope ID: C5961938-0975-4215-99CF-6D85EBDE23CS
Viridor Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid 11 (71.7 (4.8) (31.1) -
Procecds from borrowings (cxternal) net of debt issuc
costs 2,444.7 - N -
Repayment of borrowings (external) (21.1) - - -
Proceeds from other borrowings (refated parties) - 40.0 - 40.90
Repayment of other borrowings (related parties) (1,447.2) - (2,247.2) -
Proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary shares 1303 - - -
Proceeds from derivatives settlement 15.9 - - _
Payments to finance leasc creditors (8.9 (23.5) - -
Dividends paid 14 {54.4) - (54.4) -
Net cash flows from financing activities 987.6 11.7 (2,332.7) 40.0
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 68.4 74.2 (3.6) 2.3
Cash and cash equivalents at [ April 106.2 32.0 3.6 1.3
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 174.6 106.2 - 3.6

The notcs on pages 31 to 93 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Viridor Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

1 General information
The company is a private company limited by share capital, incorporated and domiciled in England.

The address of its registered office is:
Viridor House

Youngman Place

Priory Bridge Road

Taunton

Somerset

TAl 1AP

United Kingdom

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board on 16 September 2022.

2 Accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and with those parts of the Companics Act 2006 applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS.

Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of thesc financial statements are set out bclow. These policies have
been conststently applied to all the ycars presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost accounting basis {except for fair valuc items, principally
acquisitions and certain financial instruments as described in the following accounting policy notes) and in accordance with
international accounting standards in conformily with the requirements of thc Companies Act 2006. A summary of the
principal accounting policies is sct out below, together with an explanation where changes have becn made to previous policies
on the adoption of new accounting standards and interpretations in the year.

These tinancial statements are presented in pound sterling, which is the Company's functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements include the results of Viridor Limited, its subsidiarics and joint ventures.

The results of subsidiarics and joint venture undertakings are included from the datc of acquisition or incorporation and
excluded from the date of disposal. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated where the Group has the power to control the
financial and operating policies of a subsidiary. The results of joint venture and associate undertakings are accounted for on an
equity basis. [ntra-group trading, loan balances and transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the purchase of subsidiaries. The excess of the value transferred to
the seller in return for control of the acquired business together with the fair value of any previously held equity interest in that
business over the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets is recorded as goodwill.

Oncc control is achieved any change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of controel, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

Discontinued operations

During the year the Group disposcd of its Waste management cash generating unit {CGU). Accordingly the net results of this
CGU are presented within discontinued operations in the Group income statemnent (for which the comparatives have been
restated). Further information is provided in note 6.
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Viridor Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. At the time of the approving the financiai statements the
directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for a period to at lcast 31 March 2024 (the period of management’s assessment).

When making this assessment, management considers whether the Group will be able to maintain adequate liquidity headroom
above the level of its borrowing facilities and to operate within the financial covenants applicable to those facilities which will
be measured at 30 of September 2022, 31 March 2023, 30 September 2023 and 31 March 2024,

As of 31 March 2022, the Group had £2 615b of committed borrowing facilities, of which £2.464b was drawn and with
maturity ranging between September 2027 and Match 2043. In addition, Viridor Limited is a guarantor 1o the RCF in Planets
UK Bidco Limited (the immediate parent of the Group) of £200m of which £97.5m was drawn at 31 March 2022 but has been
subsequently repaid. Therefore, in preparing their asscssment management has considered the covenant associated with
facilities in both Viridor limited and Plants UK Bidco limited for the period until 31 March 2024.

For their assessment, management has prepared two cash flow forecasts - a base case and a downside case which cover the
period to 31 March 2024. The downside case acknowledges a reduction in volume throughput during the assessment period.
The base case and the downside case have significant headroom againsi available facilities. A reverse stress test has been
performed to identify a scenario which could exhaust available facilitics or breach of covenants.

The forccasts arc most scnsitive to a reduction in revenue. A substantial proportion of Viridor revenues is contracted revenues
with local authorities with prices fixed 12 months ahead. Thus, for the purpose of the reverse stress lest management
considered the non-contracted revenue. The test demonstrates that there would have to be a very significant fall in uncontracted
revenucs to impact the ability lo continue as a going concern - either through a lack of liquidity or a breach of the covenant
noted above. Management consider that the likelihood of this scenario is remote.

Therefore, the directors are confident in the ongoing resilience of the Group, and its ability to continuc in operation and meet
its commitments as they fall due over the going concern period. Accordingly, the directors adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

Changes in accounting policy

New standards, interpretations and amendments effective

New standards or interpretalions which were mandatory for the first time in the year beginning | April 2021 did not have a
material impact on the net asscts or results of the Group. New standards or interpretations due to be adopted from 1 April 2022
arc not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s net asseis or resulis.

None of the standards, intcrpretations and amendments which are effective for periods beginning after 1 April 2021 and which
have not been adopted early, are expected to have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Viridor Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition
Recognition

Group revenue is recognised following delivery of performance obligations and an assessment of when control over the
product or service is transfcrred to the customer. Revenue is only recognised when collection of consideration is highly
probable.

Revenue is recognised either when the performance obligation in the contract has been performed (‘point in time’ recognition)
or ‘over time’ as the performance obligations to the customer are satisfied. For each obligation satisfied over time, the Group
applies a revenue recognition method that accurately reflects performance in transferring control of the services to the
customet.

Where a contract with a customer includes more than one performance obligation, revenue is allocated to each obligation in
proportio to 4 fait value assessment of the total contract sales value split across the services provided.

At the inception of a contract the total transaction price is cstimated, being the fair value to which the Group expects to be
entitled under the contract, including any variable consideration. Variable consideration is based on the most likely outcome of
the performance obligations.

Revenue excludes value added tax, trade discounts, revenue arising from transactions between Group companics and includes
landfill tax.

Energy sales

The Group receives revenue from the salc of clectricity from generating assets. These assets include Energy Recovery
facilities. Revenue from the sale of electricity from the Group’s generating assets is measured based upon metered output
delivered at rates specified under contract terms or prevailing market rates. Revenue is recognised at a “point in time’, being
the point of distribution to the grid. Typically, invoices are raised monthly with standard payment terms.
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Viridor Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Waste Management Services

In respect of single services with fixed fees, such as the receipt of gate and collection fees, revenuc is recognised at the time the
service is provided.

The Group alse delivers other waste management services for which revenue is recognised ‘over time’ in accordance with
contracts with customers. The nature of contracts and/or performarnce obligations includes management fecs to operate local
authority recycling centres and cnergy recovery facilities, multi service contracts including collections and gatc fees.

Revenue from other scrvices can be fixed (i.c. management fecs) or variable {i.e. galc fees).

Gate fee revenue, derived from the Group’s operational assets, is recognised as customer waste is deposited and is based on
tonnage received.

The majority of waste management customers are invoiced monthly for services provided within the monthly billing period.
Payments are typically due on an end of month following invoice basis. Alternative billing and/or payment terms are agreed in
exceptional circumstances.

The Group transfers control of such waste management services prior to invoicing. Receipt of payment following invoice is
based solely on the passage of time. A trade receivable is recognised until payment is made and/or refund issucd.

Where the Group has entered into service concession arrangements it accounts for these contracts in accordance with TFRIC12.
Consideration is treated as contract assets or other intangible assets, depending upon the right to receive cash from the asset.
Consideration is split between construction of assets, operation of the service and provision of finance recognised as interest
receivable,

Revenue in respect of construction services is recognised over time and based on the fair valuc of work performed, with
reference to the total sales value and the stage of completion of those services, as this best reflects the manner in which control
passcs to the customer. While construction is in progress, the consideration is disclosed as a contract asset within non-current
financial assets. On entry into operational service, in accordance with IFRIC 12, the contract asset is reclassified as costs
recoverable from construction activities and disclosed within either:

- other intangible asscts (when the concession grantor has not previded a contractual guarantec in respect of the recoverable
amount regardless of the service use by customers).

- other non-current financial asscts (when the concession grantor contractually guarantecs the payment of amounts determined
in the contract or the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from users of the public service and amounts specified or
determined in the contract).

No payments are received during the construction phase.

In respect of operating services, revenue is recognised over time in line with delivery of operational services in accordance
with the contract with the local authotity.

Once the operational phasc commences, the Group has a right 1o reccive consideration for the construction and operational
services delivercd. Invoicing typically occurs monthly and payments are duc by the end of the month following date of invoice.

Recyclate

The Group transforms waste into reeyclate ready for resale. Revenue is measured at the agreed transaction price per tonine of
recyclate under the contract with the customer. Revenue recognition occurs when control over the recyclate assets has been
transferred to the customer.

In respect of UK sales, the Group’s performance obligation is satisfied at the point of collection by the customer. This is the
point in time when an invoice is issued and revenue is recognised Payment termns are typically end of month following invoice
date. Overseas sales are predominantly agreed under a letter of credit. Goods are despatched at the point the letter of credit is
accepted by the customers bank, Payment is relcased when the customer confirms satisfactory receipt of the recyclate. This is
the point legal title (i.e. control) passes to the customer and revenue is recognised.
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2 Accounting policies {(continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

A trade receivable is rccognised when the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration in exchange for
performance obligations already fulfilled. A contract asset is recognised when the Group has fulfilled some of its performance
obligations but has not yet obtained an unconditional right to receive consideration, such as during the construction phase of a
service concession agreement, as described above.

A contract liability is recognised when consideration is received in advance of the Group performing its performance
abligations to customers,

Landfill tax

In respect of its landfill business, revenue was set to cover total costs, including landfill tax (LFT), and to achieve a desired
profit margin. Viridor, as the operator, had a diteet ubligation w pay LFT, which represents a significant waste disposal cost ot
production for the business.

Other incote

Other income is derived from activities which do not form part of the ordinary business cycle for Group, this consists of
insurance recoveries and delay damages received for loss of revenue on asset construction. Other income is recognised when
management considers receipt to be virtually certain and the amount can be reliably measured or estimated.

Forcign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabitities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the respective functional currency of the
entity at the rates prevailing on the reporting period date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the initial transaction dates.

Non-monctary items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency arc not retranslated.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on consolidation from the acquisition of subsidiary and joint venture undertakings represents the cxcess of the
purchasc consideration over the fair value of nct asscts acquired, less any subsequent impairment charges.

Goodwill is recognised as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately
in the income statement and is not subsequently reversed. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash gencrating units or group of cash generating units that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes. Further details are contained in the
accounting policy "Impairment of non-financial assets". When a subsidiary or joint venture undertaking is sold, the profit or
loss on disposal is determined after including the attributable amount of unamortised goodwill.

Other intangible assets

An intangible asset 1s recognised in respect of scrvice concession contracts to the extent that future amounts to be received are
not contractually guaranteed. The asset is amortised over the length of the contract and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the assct may be impaired.

Other intangible assets acquired in a business combination arc capitalised at fair value at the date of acquisition. Following
initial recognition, finite life intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated uscful economic lives,
with the expensc taken to the income statement through operating costs. Amortisation rates used are between 5% and 10% per
annum.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e. at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic
benefits arc cxpected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the assct (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or
loss).
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Property, plant and equipment

Landfill sites

Landfill sites are included within land and buildings at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes acquisition and
development expenses. The cost of a landfill is depreciated to its residual valuc over its cstimated operational life taking
account of the usage of void space,

Landfill restoration

Wherc the obligation to restore a landfill site is an intcgral part of its future cconomic benefits, a non-current assct within
property, plant and equipment is recognised. The asset recognised is depreciated based on the usage of void space.

Other assets (including property, plant and equipment)

Other assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation,

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construction over their
estimated uscful lives, as follows:

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Frechold buildings 30-50 years
The shorter of their estimated useful
Short-term leasehold land and buildings econowmic lives or the finance lease
period.
Fixed and mobile plant, vehicles and computers 3-10 years
Energy recovery facilities 25-40 years
Polymer reproccssing facilities 10-25 years
Assets classificd as construction in progress Not depreciated until commissioned

The cost of assets includes directly attributable labour and overhead costs which are incremcntal 1o the Group. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to the construction of a qualifying assct (an asset necessarily taking a substantial period of time to be
prepared for its intended use) are capitalised as part of the asset.

Asgset lives and residual values arc reviewed annually.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal (i.e. at the date the recipient obtains control) or when
no future economic benefits arc expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derccognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derccognised.

Grants and contributions
Grants are recognised where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all the attached conditions will
be complied with.

Grants and contributions receivable in respect of property, plant and equipment arc deducted from the cost of those assets.

Grants and contributions receivable in respect of expenditurc charged against profits in the year have been included in the
income statemnent in other operating expenses.
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Leased assets
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Leased assets are accounted for by recognising a right-of use-asset and a lease liability except for:
* Low value assets; and
» Leases with a duration of 12 months or less.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recogniscs right-of-usc assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease labilities. The cost of right-of-use assets mncludes the amount ot lease habikities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. If
ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the cxercisc of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to
impairment.

If a lease liability is terminated or novated to a third party the related right-of-usc asset is derecognised. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of the assct {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, the carrying amount of the asset and
the present value of the leasc liability) is included in the income statement in other opcrating expenses.

Lease liahilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The leasc payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts cxpected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchasc option rcasonably certain to be
exerciscd by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminatc. Varnable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unlcss they
are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date, because the interest rate implicit in the lcase is not readily determinable. After the commencemnent date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lcasc payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease Habilities is remeasured if there is a medification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease
payments (e.g. changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to detcrminc such lease payments)
or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Asscts with an indefinite useful life arc not subjcct to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or whenever events
or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Assets subject to amortisation or depreciation are tested for impairment whenever cvents or changes in circumstances indicatc
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
rccoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value, less costs to sell, and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, asscts arc grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Valuc in use represents the present value of projected future cash tlows expected to be derived from a cash-generating
unit, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate which reflects an assessment of the market cost of capital of the cash-generating
unit, Impairments are charged te the income statement in the year in which they arise.

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that have been impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

Where a previously impaired assel or cash generating unit’s recoverable amount is in excess of its carrying amount, previous
impairments are reversed to the carrying value that would have expected to be recognised had the original impairment not
occurred.

Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are initially recorded at cost, being the fair value of the consideration paid.
Subsequently, investments are reviewed for impairment on an individual basis annually or if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be fully recoverable.

Page 37



DocuSign Envelope I0: C5961938-0975-4215-99CF-6D66EBOE23C5
Virider Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Investment in joint ventures

Joint ventures are entities over which the Group cxercises joint control. Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the fair values of the
identifiable nct assets of the joint venture at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill and is included in the carrying
value of the investment in the joint venrure.

The catrying value of the Group's investment is adjusted for the Group’s share of post-acquisition post-tax profits or losses
recognised in the income statement and statement of comprehensive income. Losses of a joint venture in cxcess of the Group’s
interest are not recognised unless the Group has a legal or constructive obligation to fund those losses.

Inventories

Inventorics are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost of finished goods and work in progress includes raw
materials and the cost of bringing stocks to their present location and condition. It excludes borrowing costs. Costs are assigned
to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less
cost to sell.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and shott-term highly
liquid deposits with a maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
msignificant risk of changes in value.

Derivatives and other financial instruments
Financial instruments are recognised and measured in accordance with IFRS 9.

The Group classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurrcd. Following initial recognition
interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses arg recognised in the incomge statement when instruments arc derecognised or impaired.

Premia, discounts and other costs and fees are recognised in the income statement through the amortisation process.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilitics unless the Group has an unconditional right te defer settlement of the Lability
for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest receivable and are recognised initially at fair value and subscquently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for expected credit losses (ECLs). Each Group entity performs an
impairment analysis at each reporting date to measure the ECLs. Each entity docs not track changes in credit risk but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. Each subsidiary has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss expcrience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the receivables and the
ecomnonlic cnvironment.

Trade payabies
Trade payables are not intercst-bearing and are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently mcasured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Financial assets arising from service concession arrangements

Where the provision of waste management services is performed through a contract with a public sector entity which controls a
significant residual interest in asset infrastructure at the end of the contract, then consideration is treated as contract
receivables, split between income from the construction of asscts, operation of the service and the provision of finance which is
recognised in notional interest within finance income.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, principally RPI swaps and intcrest rate swaps to hedge cash flow risks
associated with components of long-term contractual terms linked to a quoted index. The group also uses currency forward
contracts and energy swaps to hedge cash flow risks associated with forecast transactions with a clearly defined market price
risk. Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently re-measured at fair valuc for the reported balance sheet.

The gain or loss on remeasurement is recognised in the incomc statement except for cash flow hedges which meet the
conditiens for hedge accounting, when the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument which is determined to be
effective is recognised in other comprehensive income and the inctfective portion in the income statement. The gains or losses
deferred in cquitly in this way are subsequently recognised in the income statement in the same period in which the hedged
underlying transaction or firm commitment is recognised in the income statement.

In order to qualify for hedge accounting the Group is required to document, in advance, the relationship between the item being
hedged and the hedging instrument. The Group is also required to document and demonstrate an assessment of the relationship
between the hedged item and the hedging instrument which shows that the hedge will be highly effective on an ongoing basis.
This effectiveness testing is re-performed at the cnd of cach reporting period to ensure that the hedge remains highly effective.

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the
hedged item is more than one year and as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less
than one year. Derivative financial instruments which do not qualify for hedge accounting arc classificd as a current asset or
liability with any change in fair value recognised immediately in the income statement.

Receivables due from subsidiary undertakings

Amounts owed by subsidiarics arc classified and recorded at amortiscd cost and reduced by allowances for expected credit
losses. Estimated fumre credit losses are first recorded on initial recognition of a receivable and are based on estimated
probability of default.

Borrowings

All borrowings are initially recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of transaction costs. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost, with the diffecrence between the proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the amount due on redemption
being recogniscd as a charge to the income statement over the period of the relevant borrowing.

Interest expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer scttlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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Tax

The tax cxpense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in the statement of comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income or directly in equity as appropriate.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have becn enacted or substantively enacted
by the reperting date in the countrics where the group operates and generates taxable income.

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of asscts and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements and on unused tax losses or tax credits in the group. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax ratcs and laws that have been enacied or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and a valuation allowance is set up against
deferred tax assets so that the net carrying amount equals the highest amount that is more likely than not to be recovered based
on current or future taxable profit.

All deferred tax assets and liabilities within the same jurisdiction are offset.

Provisions

The Group had a number of provisions in relation to Environmental compliance as well as Health and Safety incidents.
Provisions are made where there is a present legal or constructive obligaiion as a result of a past event and it is probable that
therc will be an outflow of economic bencfits (o settle this obligation and a religble estimate of this amount can be made.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material the current amount of a provision is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle obligations. The unwinding of the discount to present value is included as a
financial item within finance costs where applicable.

The Group's policies on provisions for specific areas arc:

Landfill vestoration costs

Provisions for the cost of restoring landfill sites arc made when the obligation arises. Wherc the obligation recognised as a
provision gives access to future economic benefits, an asset in property, plant and equipment is recognised. Provisions are
otherwisc charged to the income statermnent based on the consumption of veid space at the relevant site.

Environmentul control and aftercare costs

Environmental control and aftercare costs are incurred during the operational life of each landfill site and for a considerable
peried thercafter. Provision for all such costs is made over the operational life of the site and charged to the income statement
based on the consumption of void space at the relevant site.

Underperforming contracts

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting a contract’s obligations exceed the economic benefits derived from that contract, the
unavoidable costs, less revenue anticipated under the terms of the contract, are recognised as a provision and charged to the
income statement. An impairment loss on any assets dedicated to that contract is also recognised as described in the accounting
policy "Impairment of non-financial assets".

Share capital
Ordinary sharcs are classified as equity.

Dividends
Dividend distributions are recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the Company’s shareholders. Interim dividends are recogniscd when paid. The Company docs not pay a final dividend.
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Defined benefit pension obligation

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the year less the fair value of plan assets. The defined henefit obligation is calculated by
independent actuaries who advise on the selection of Directors’ best estimate of assumptions, using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows using
interest rates of high quality corporate bonds, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
obligation. The increase in liabilities of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes, expected to arise from employee service
in the ycar is charged against operating profit.

Changes in benefits granted by the employer are recognised immediately as past service cost in the income statcmcent.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from cxperience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to
equity in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Defined contribution pension obligation
Costs of the defined contribution pension scheme are charged to the income statement in the year in which they arise. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

Share based payments

Certain employees of the Group receive shares in the capital of Planets Topco Limited (an indirect parent company of this
Group). The fair value of the employee services required in exchange for the grant is recognised as an expense over the vesting
period of the grant. Fair values are calculated using an appropriate pricing medel. The grant date fair values of the awards arc
nol remeasured once cstablished. The cumulative fair value of the award is recognised over the vesting period in a share based
payment reserve.

Pre-contract and development costs

Pre-contract and development costs are expensed as incurred, except incremental costs of obtaining a contract and certain costs
to fulfil a contract in which case they are recogniscd as an asset which is amortised to the income statement over the lifc of the
conlract.

Fair values

The fair values of short-term deposits, loans and overdrafis with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate to
their book values. In the casc of non-current bank loans and other loans the fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the best estimate of future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate
available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

Non-underlying items
Non-underlying itcms are those that in the Directors’ view are required to be separately disclosed by virtue of their size, nature
or incidence to enable a full understanding of the Group’s financial performance.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovercd
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assetls and disposal groups classified as
held for sale arc measurcd at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to scll. Costs to sell are the
incremental costs directly attributabic to the disposal of an assct (disposal group), excluding finance costs and income tax
expense.

The criteria for held for salc classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, the asset or disposal group
is available for immediate sale in its present condition, actions required to complele the sale indicate that it is unlikely that
significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn, and there is a commitment to the
plan to sell the asscts, and the sale is expected to be completed within one ycar from the date of the classification.

Properiy, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised onee classificd as held for sale.

Assets and liabilities classilied as held for sale arc presented separately as current items in the statement of financial position.
Discontinued operations arc excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit

or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit or loss.
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3 Accounting errors

Other comprehensive income reserve classification

In the previous period other comprehensive in relation to the remeasurement of defined benefit obligations and the share of
other comprehensive income from joint ventures was incorrectly presented within the hedging reserve. A prior period
correction has becn made that has increased the hedging reserve by £16.0m and decreased retained earnings by £16.0m.

There is no impact to the income statement, the net assets of the Group or the statement of cash flows,

Page 42



DocuSign Envelope ID: €5961938-0975-4215-99CF-6DE6EBDE23C5H
Yiridor Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

4 Financial risk revicw

Group
The financial risk management policies reflect conditions that existed through and at the year ending 31 March 2022.

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a number of financial risks: liquidity risk, market risk (including interest rate risk, inflation
risk, and energy price risk), and credit risk. Details of the nature of each of these risks along with the steps the Group has taken
to manage them is described below.

The Group's treasury function seeks to ensure that sufficient funding is available to meet foreseeable needs and to maintain
reasonable headroom for contingencies and manages financial risks.

These risks and treasury operations are managed by the Chief Financial Officer in accordance with policies cstablished by the
Board. Major transactions are individually approved by the Board.

Financial instruments, including derivatives, arc used, where appropriate, to manage the risks of fluctuations in interest rates,
inflation and other financial risks. The Group does not engage in speculative activity.

Marker risk

Market risk relates to fluctuations in cxternal market variables such as interest rates, inflation and exchange rates that affect the
Group's income or the value of the financial instruments that it holds.

Of the Group's interest-bearing financial liabilities at the year-end, 97% were at fixed rates after the impact of financial
derivatives designed to manage the risk of fluctuating interest rates impacting the financial performance of the Group.

The Group is currently considering its strategy for the transition from LIBOR to SONIA in conjunction with other businesses
controlled by KKR. Due to the high level of effectively fixed debt, there should be no material impact from the transition.

The Group has long term contracts with customers for the processing of waste, and some of the prices are linked to the RPI
index. The group has entered intp RPI swap contracts which effectively fix RPI on 100% of forecast contractual RPI-linked
revenue from local authority customers until 2036, and 85% until 2043. RPI swap contracts cffectively fix RPI on between
63%-93% of forccast contractual RPI-linked revenuc from all customers over the same peried.

The Group's primary cxposure to exchange rates arises from contractual commitments to incur expenditure in Euros, primarily
in relation to major capital projects. The group uses a combination of Furo cash deposits and currency forward contracts to
manage this risk. There was no material net exposure at the year-end.

Liquidity risk
The Group maintains facilities that are designed to ensure significant available funds for operations, planned expansions and

facilities equivalent to at least one year’s forccast requirements at all times, with reasonable headroom for contingencics. A
financial covenant, prior to the payment of a dividend, was assessed in June 2022 with resulting headroom.

This financial covenant is a debt service coverage ratio comparing cash generated during a twelve-month period against
interest payments and other debt service costs. Additional covenants himit the Group’s ability to enter into certain transactions,
including placing limits on its ability to pay dividends. The Group has complied with these covenants throughout the financial
year.
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4 Financial risk review (continued)

Maturity analysis far financial liabilities and financial assets
Contractual undiscounted cash flows, including interest payments, at the balance shect date werc:

Group

Less than 1 More than 5
2022 year 1-5 years years Total
Non-derivative liabilities £m £fm fm £fm
Borrowings excluding lease liabilities 535 307.9 2,102.5 2,463.9
Interest payments on borrowings 772 3049 533.1 915.2
Lease habilities including interest 34 8.5 42.1 54.0

Less than 1 More than 5
2021 year 1-5 years years Total
Non-derivative liabilities fm £m £m £m
Borrowings excluding lease liabilities - - 1,463.4 1,463.4
Interest payments on borrowings 549 219.6 508.5 783.0
Lcase liabilitics including interest 13.9 38.2 155.2 2073
Company

Less than 1 More than 5
2021 year 1-5 years years Total
Non-derivative liabilities £m £m £fm £m
Borrowings excluding lease liabilities 31.3 - 1,260.8 1,292.1
Interest payments on borrowings 47.3 189.2 438.1 674.6
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The group was refinanced on 1 December 2021. This refinancing involved issuing nhew debt under two arrangements.

The "Viridor Encrgy' debt is structured in 3 tranches. Each tranche ranks equally in the security package which, along with the
revolving credit facility, bonding facility and derivative contracts, is secured over the the majority of the assets of the business.

Facility A, issued by Viridor Energy (Investments Two) Limited and totaliing £780.0m, forms an amortising debt, with the
final payment due on 1 December 2033. It has an intcrest rate which is initially SONIA+1.60%, increasing to SONIA+1.70%
in 2024 and to SONIA+1.80% in 2028.

Facility B, also issucd by Viridor Energy (Investments Two) Limited and totalling £120.0m, has a single repayment duc on 18
September 2027. It has a fixed interest ratc of 2.703%.

The Private Placemicul Nutes, issued by Viridor Energy Group Limited and histed tn Jersey totalled £1,585.0m, forms an
amortising debt, with the final payment due on 31 March 2043. The amortisation profile is designed to maintain a forecast debt
service coverage ratio when combined with the debts above. [t has a fixed interest rate of 2.90%.

Viridor Energy (Investments Two) Limited also has a general purpose revolving credit facility of £65.0m intended to support
liquidity of the Viridor Energy subgroup, and a further debt service reserve facility of £65.0m which is a dedicated revolving
credit facility that can only be used to meet its debt service payment obligations. These facilities expire on 1 December 2026.
No balances were drawn at 31 March 2022. Drawn facilities bear interest at SONIA+1.25%.

Viridor Limited and its major subsidiaries (but excluding the subgroup headed by Viridor Energy Investmenis Lid} are obligors
under the £200m Planets UK Bideo Limited revolving credit facility. Contractual arrangements are in place such that Viridor
Limited can access this facility when required. £97.5m of this facility was drawn at 31 March 2022, but the balance was repaid
in full during April 2022. This facility is intended to support liquidity and also to provide short term funding for significant
capital projects. Drawn facilities bear interest at SONIA+2.50%.

Credit risk

Credit and counterparty risk arises from cash and cash deposits and deposits with bank and financial institutions, as well as
exposure to customers, including outstanding receivables. Further information on the credit risk rclating to trade reccivables is
given in note 25.

Counterparty risk arises from the investment of surplus funds and from the usc of derivative financial instruments. The Group
follows a policy for managing such risk which is controlled through credit limits, counterparty approvals and rigorous
monitoring procedures.

The Group has no other significant concentration of credit risk. The Group's surplus funds are managed by the Group's treasury
function and, where sufficient incremental yield is available, are placed in short term deposits or the overnight money markets.
Deposit counterparties must tmeet minimum criteria based on their short-term credit ratings and therefore be of good credit

quality.

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability 1o continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure in order to
minimise the cost of capital.

Commodity risk

The Group is exposed to availability and price fluctuations in the recyclate markets in which it operates. The Group mitigates
this risk with a combination of long-term contracts with local authorities, which secures substantial amounts of recyclate
materials and by cxlensive cost control and continual efficiency management programmes at its recycling plants.

Energy price risk

The Group is exposed to price fluctuations in the energy supply market, It secks to mitigate this risk with a combination of
forward sale contracts, supported by encrgy derivatives, in line with a Board approved policy. Due to the complex interactions
between these different contracts the Group has not designated the energy derivatives as hedging instruments for accounting
purposes as at 31 March 2022,
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4 Financial risk review (continued)

Determination of fair values

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability between informed and willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale at the measurement date. The
techniques for determining the fair value of financial instruments are classified under the hicrarchy defined in IFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement which categorises inputs to valuation techniques into levels one to three based on the degree to which fair
value is observable. The Group's financial instruments are valued using level two measures, as analysed in note 26.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments, including interest rate swaps and index-linked swaps, arc measurcd using
discounted cash flows. The future cash flows are estimalcd based on observable forward intercst rates and discounts at a rate
that reflects the credit risk of the Group and counterpartics. Currency cash flows are translated as spot rate.

The carrying values less expected credit losses of the Group’s trade and other reccivables, lease liabilities, cash and cash
cquivalents, short term investments, trade and other payables arc considered to be approximate to their fair valucs. The fair
value of financial liabilities, principaily environmental provisions, is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rates available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

The carrying valucs less expected credit losses of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate to their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities, principally environmental provisions, is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market intcrest rate available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

5 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group’s principal accounting policics are set out in note 2. Management is required to excrcise significant judgment and
make use of estimates and assumptions in the application of these policies. Estimates are based on factors including historical
cxperience and expectations of future cvents that management believe to be reasonable. However, given the judgemental
nature of such estimates, actual results could be different from the assumptions used.

Environmental and landfill restoration provisions

Environmental control and aftercare costs are incurred during the operational life of each landfill site and for a considerable
period thercafter. The period of aftercare past-closure and the level of costs expected are uncertain and can vary significantly
from site to site. Key factors are the type of waste, the speed at which it decomposes, the volume of leachate requiring
treatment and rcgulatory requirements specific to the site. The amounts cxpected to be incurred have been re-assessed,
re-estimated and aligned to the latest estimate of landfill site operating lives.

The provisions arc based on latest assumptions reflecting recent historical data and future cost cstimates. The afiercare
provision is particularly sensitive to the estimated volumes of leachate and their associated cost, together with the discount rate
used to establish the provision.

The provisions are recognised in the financial statements at the net present value of the estimated future expenditure required
to settle the Group's obligations. A discount rate is applied to recognise the time value of money and is unwound over the life
of the provision. This is included in the income statement as a financial item within finance costs.

An aftercarc period between 30 and 60 years is used in calculating provision values. This is considcred reasonable by
management, is comparable to peers in the waste business and is consistent with Environment Agency bond periods.

Retirement henefit obligations

The pension cost and liabilities under IAS 19 are assessed in accordance with Directors’ best estimates using the advice of an
independent qualified actuary and assumptions in the latest actuarial vaiuation. The assumptions are based on member data
supplied 10 the actuary and market observations for interest rates and inflation, supplemented by discussions between the
actuary and managemcnt. The mortality assumption uses a scheme-specific calculation based on CMI 2018 actuarial tables
with an allowance for future longevity improvement. The principal assumptions used to measure schemes’ liabilitics,
sensitivities to changes in those assumptions and future funding obligations are set out in note 31.
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5 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Taxation
The Group has a current tax payable of £39.0 million (2021: £0.40 million receivable ).

The Group continues to have a small number of ongoing uncertain tax items primarily relating to the interpretation of tax
legislation regarding different tax aspects of its ERF’s. This is part of the normal course of business and the Group has paid in
full the tax HMRC interpret as due, and therefore would benefit by a cash refund of up to £21.2 million {2021: £22.1 million)
should these tax items be concluded in the Group’s favour. The Group is continuing to work towards resolution of these
matters with HMRC. The amount of the cash refund will reduce over time as the points at stake mainly relate to timing issues.

Valuation of goodwill

The Group tests goodwill for impairment of cash generating units annually, or more frequently if there are any indications that
impairment may have arisen. The recoverable amount of the CGUs have been assessed using a value in use or fair value less
costs to scll. The results of the tests performed during the year demonstrate significant headroom and it is judged that ne
reasonable change in the key assumptions would cause the carrying amount of the CGUs to exceed the recoverable amount.

Service concession arrangements

Consideration from public sector entities for the operation of waste management service concessions is treated as contract
receivables or other intangible asscts, depending on the right to receive cash from the asset. At the balance sheet date there
were contract receivables of £233.70 million(2021:£259.50 million) and other intangible assets of £41.70 miilion (2021:
£44.10 million) in relation to its service concession arrangements,

Consideration relating to contract receivables is split between profit on the construction of assets, operation of the service and
provision of finance recognised as interest receivable. Management’s judgement is used in the allocation between these three
elements, this asscssment reflects external market conditions according to the type of service provided and project specific cash
flow expectations. Scc Note 7 for further details.

Non-underlying items

In establishing which items are disclosed separately as non-underlying, to enable a full understanding of the Group’s financial
performance, the Directors exercise their judgement in assessing the size, naturc or incidence of specific items. Sce Note 7 for
further details.
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6 Discontinued operations

Following a strategic decision to focus on the Group's ERF and polymers recycling businesses, during the year, the Group sold
its entire Waste cash generating unit (CGU). This comprised cash generating and profitable recycling, collections, landfill and
landfill gas businesses.

The Waste CGU was not previously classified as held-for-sale or as a discontinucd operation. The comparative consolidated
income statement and OCI have been represented to show the discontinued operation separately from continuing operations.

Although intra-group transactions have been fully eliminated in the consolidated financial results, management have elected to

present the elimination of transactions below as management believes this is useful to the users of the financial statements in
assessing the underlying business that has been disposed.

The results of the discontinued operations, which have been included in the consolidated income statemcent, were as follows:

2022 2021
£m £m
Revenuce 258.2 288.7
Elimination of intra-group revenue (50.4) (67.2)
Expenscs (228.3) (290.0)
Elimination of intra-group costs 21.1 40.2
Profit/(loss) before tax 0.6 {(28.3)
Gain/(loss) on measurement to fair value less costs to sell of assets held for sale 45.0 -
Tax cxpense relating to the gain/(loss) on discontinuance (6.3) -
Net gain/(loss) attributable to discontinued operations 39.3 {28.3)
The discontinued opcrations results contributed the following to the group cash flow:
2022 2021
£m £m
Net cash inflows from operating activities 529 32
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from investing activitics 145.2 (14.7)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from financing activitics 0.1 (0.9)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) arising on disposal 198.2 (12.4)
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7 Non-underlying items

Non-underlying items are those that in the Directors” view are required to be separately disclosed by virtue of their size, nature
or incidence to enable a full understanding of the Group’s financial performance in the year and business trends over time.

2022 2021

Operating costs Note £m £m
Employment costs
Impact of strategic review (d) 2.0% (2.4)
Other operating expenses
Transfer of defined benefit pension schemes (b) - 353
Construction receivablc & legal fees recoverable (c) - (43.8)
HSE compliance risk (f) (10.0)
Exit from share schemes (g) - (0.6)
Assct derecognition {h) - 2.1
Contract cxit sctilement (k) - (0.4)

- (21.6)
Depreciation / Amortisation / Impairment
Impairment of intangible assets (a) - (46.8)
Accelerated depreciation of certain IT assets (i) - (10.0)
Impairment of Plant & Machinery (j) - (2.5)
Operating loss .00 (83.3)
Deferred tax change in rate (1) 427 -
Tax credit/(charge) arising on non-underlying items 12 1.2 12.7
Discontinued activities
Gain on disposal of wastc cash gencrating unit (1) 38.7 -
Impact of strategic review (d & e) - 4.7
Net non-underlying charge (4.8) (75.3)

(a)  The group tests for impairment of cash generating units and during the year ending 31 March 2021, this has resulted in
an impairment of the intangible asset relating to the Glasgow Recycling Renewable Energy Centre. The impairment of
£46.8m has been based on the asset’s valuc in use, with the key driver for the impairment being sitc tonnage
throughputs being at a lower level than expected. The key estimates used wcre tonnage throughput, availability of
anaerobic digestion and a discount rate of 6.25%.

(b)  As part of the acquisition of Viridor by KKR there were changes to the principal employer of certain pension schemes.
The Somerset Section of the Citrus Pension Plan was split into three scctions, two of which have Pennon Group plc as
Principal Employer, replacing Viridor Waste (Somerset) Limited. Pennon became principal employer of the Viridor
Waste Scetion of the Citrus Pension Plan. In addition, Viridor is no longer a participant in the Pennon Group Pension
Scheme. The transfer of the assets and liabilities resulted in a settlement gain of £35.3m.

(c) A setilement was rcached with Tilbury Douglas Construction Limited (formerly known as Interserve Construction
Limited) in relation to rectifications and completion costs for Glasgow Recycling Renewable Energy Centre in June
2021, This resulted in a charge to the income statement of £43.8m.

(d)  The group has undertaken a strategic review of its operations under new ownership in the year. This has resulted in
cmployee related charges of £2.0 millien (2021: employee related charges of £2.4 million and professional fees incurred
of £12.0 million).

{e} The Group has assessed the risk on certain landfill related liabilities and the net credit to the income statcment is £7.3m.
This is the reversal of a provision previously charged to non-underlying items.

)] The Group has asscssed the liability resulting from potential prosccutions from the Health and Safety Executive
resulting in a charge of £10m.
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7 Non-underlying items {continued)

(2)
(h)
@)
)
(k)

0}

Post the change in ownership the Group is no longer part of the equity scttled sharc plans that Pennon Group plc
aperated. This was resulted in a charge to the income statement of £0.6m.

As part of the change in ownership the Group has assessed certain assets. This was resulted in an asset derccognition of
£2.1m.

Investment in systems infrastructure commenced during the year and a reassessment of the remaining usefil lives of
existing [T-related assets took place, resulting in an accelerated depreciation charge of £10m.

Whilst testing for impairment in property, plant and equipment, an impairment of £2.5m was charged relating to CGUs
in our polymers division.

Professional fecs incurred in the course of progressing the final settlement matters associated with the Greater
Manchester operating contract, from which the Group exited in May 2019,

During the year, the Group completed its strategic programme for the disposal of its Waste business. The profit on
disposal before tax was £45.0m and the related tax disposal resulted in a charge of £6.3m.
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8 Revenuc and operating costs

The grouping of revenue streams, analysed by different types of revenue streams geographically, is as follows:

Rest of
UK Europe World Total
31 March 2022 £m £m £m £m
Waste management services 350.8 - - 3508
Energy 106.6 - - 106.6
Recyclate 61.0 20.9 16.8 98.7
518.4 20.9 16.8 556.1

Rest of
UK Europe World Total
31 March 2021 £m £m £m £m
Waste management services 3111 - - 311.1
Encrgy 83.0 - - 83.0
Recyclate 39.3 10.5 15.0 64.8
433.4 10.5 15.0 458.9

The Group’s country of domicile is the United Kingdom and fs the country in which it generates most of its revenue. The
Group’s non-current assels are all located in the United Kingdom.
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8 Revenue and operating costs (continued)

Continuing operating costs (before non-underlying items)

2022 2021
Nate £m £m
Employment costs 15 71.3 71.2
Raw materials and cotsumables used 100.9 60.4
Other operating costs
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1.3) 3.7
Short-term and low value lease rentals payable 34 32
Trade reccivables impairment (0.8) (0.8}
Amortisation of deferred income - 0.4)
Hired and contracted services 84.4 74.5
Other external charges 76.8 78.4
162.5 158.6
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 75.8 45.3
Amortisation of intangible asscts 2.6 2.3
9 Auditors' remuneration
2022 2021
£fm £fm
Audit of these financial statements 0.4 0.4
Audit of the financial statements of subsidiaries 0.6 0.7
1.4 i.1
10 Other income
The analysis of the group's other operating income for the year is as follows:
2022 2021
£m £fm
Compensation for loss of eamings 0.6 17.3
Insurance income 2.0 8.8
2.6 26.1

Compensation for loss of camings relates to damages for delays to an asset under construction. The Insurance income relates to
income recoverable under insurance policies.
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11 Finance income and costs

Continuing activitics

2022 2021

Note £m £m
Finance income
Other finance income 0.1 0.1
Interest incotne on loans to rclated partics 37 6.8 5.5
Retirement benefit obligation 31 1.9 2.5
Interest receivable on service concession arrangements 13.2 13.4
Total finance income 21.8 21.5
Finance costs
Intcrest on bank overdrafts and borrowings (26.4) -
Interest clement of lease rentals (2.4) (5.1)
Loss on derivatives at fair value through profit ot loss (192.9) (1.3
Other finance costs - {3.6)
Interest expense on loans from related parties 37 (18.8) (38.5)
Retirement benefit obligations 31 (1.4} (2.2)
Borrowing costs included in cost of qualifying asset 8 1.2 3.3
Total finance costs (240.7) (48.4)
Net finance costs {218.9) (26.9)

Finance costs include a credit of £1.2 million (2021: credit of £3.3 million) for interest capitalised relating to the construction
of Encrgy Recovery Facilities, Polymer Reprocessing Facilities and other significant projects where construction cxceeds one
year. The loans on which the interest is charged are provided by the parent undertaking at funding rates explained in note 37.
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12 Imcome tax

Tax charged/{credited) in the income statement

Before non- Non- Before non- Non-
underlying underlying underlying underlying
items jtems Total items items Total
(Note T) {(Note 7)
2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021
£fm £m £m £m £m £m
Current taxation
UK corporation tax 374 (1.2) 36.2 11.3 (8.2) 3.1
Deferred taxation
Deferred tax (42.5) 42,7 02 4.8 (4.5) 0.3
Tax (credit)/charge reported
in the income statement (5.1) 41.5 364 16.1 (12.7) 34

As announced in the Chancellor’s Budget on 4 March 2021, the headline rate of corporation tax in the UK will incrcase from |
April 2023 to 25%. This change was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021, following the third reading in thc House of
Commons. The effect of the change in rate has resulted in an increase to the deferred tax liability of £37.6 million of which
£42.7m has been charged to the income statement, This has becn recorded as a non-underlying itcm in the income staterment
due to its size.

The tax on profit before tax for the year is the same as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (2021: the samec as the
standard rate of corporation tax in the UK) of 19% (2021: 19%).

The differcnces are reconciled below:

2022 2021
£m £m
Loss before tax from continuing operations (68.4) 53.0
Profit before tax from discontinued operations 45.6 (28.3)
(Loss)/profit before tax (22.8) 24.7
Corporation tax at standard rate 4.3) 4.7
Increase from effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes i3 4.6
(Decreasc)/increase from effect of capital allowances depreciation (0.8) 2.0
Decrease from effect of joint-ventures and associates results reparted niet of tax (1.3 3.0)
Derecognition of deferred tax assets 12.3 -
Profit on sale of investments (13.7) -
Deferred tax expense relating to changes in tax rates or laws 42.7 -
Decrease in current tax from adjustment for prior periods (1.8) (5.0}
Other tax effccts for reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense - 0.1
Total tax charge 36.4 34

The average total effective rate for the year, before non-underlying items is -160.8% (2021: 13.8%).
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12 Income tax (continued)

In addition to the amounts rccogniscd in the income statement the following tax charges and credits were also recognised:

2022 2021
Tax Tax
Before tax (charge)/credit Net of tax Before tax (charge)/credit Net of tax
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Amounts recognised directly in
other comprehensive income
Giain or loss on cash flow hedges (171.3) 439 (127.4) {13.4) 2.4 (11.0)
Rcmeasurements of post
cmployment benefit obligations 1.6 0.1 1.7 {20.8) 3.7 (17.1)
Share of associates and joint
ventures other comprehensive
income - - - 1.1 - L1

(169.7) 44.0 (125.7) (33.1) 6.1 (27.0)
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12 Income tax {continued)

Deferred tax

Group
Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences under the liability method using enacted tax rates. Deferred tax assets
have been recognised in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax asscts because its probable that these
assets will be recovered. The majority of the deferred tax is expected to be recovered over more than one year. All deferred tax
assets within the samc jurisdiction are offset.

Deferred tax movement during the year:

Income Other
statement  compre- At
At 1 April Income non- hensive 31 March
2021 statement underlying income 2022
£m £m £m fm £m
Revenue on service concession arrangements (46.9) 133 (11.1) - (44.6)
Accelerated tax depreciation (64.0) (20.6) (35.9) - (120.5)
Provisions 34 2.7} 0.2 - 0.9
Derivatives 2.6 341 05 439 81.2
Tax losscs carry-forwards 3.7 12.2 35 - 19.4
Pension benefit ohligations 0.1 {0.1) - 0.1 0.1
Share-bascd payment - - - - -
Net tax assets/{liabilities} (101.1) 36.2 (42.7) 44.0 (63.7)

Included within the credit to the income statement is a charge of £6.3m in rclation to disposals arising as part of the
discontinued opcrations, notc 6.

Deferred tax movement during the prior year:

Income Other

statement  compre- At

At 1 April Income non- hensive 31 March

2020 statement underlying income 2021

£m £fm £m £m £m
Revenue on service concession arrangements (55.7) (0.5) 93 - (46.9)
Accelerated tax depreciation (52.4) {13.5) 1.9 - {64.0)
Provisions {4.4) 1.8 - - 34
Dertvatives - 02 - 2.4 2.6
Tax losses carry-forwards 1.5 22 - - 3.7
Pension benefit obligations 31 - 6.7 3.7 0.1
Share-based payment 1.0 (1.0) - - -
Net tax assets/{liabilitics) (106.9) 4.8} 4.5 6.1 (101.1)

In addition to the deferred tax balances above, the Group has additional unrecognised gross restricted interest of £64.8m (2021:
Nil).
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13 Profit of the parent company

2022 2021
£m £fm

Profit attributable to owners of the parent dealt with in the financial statements of
Viridor Limited 2.095.6 20.2

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 no income statement or statement of comprehensive income is
presented for the Company.

14 Dividends
Dividends paid refer to both Group and Company

Group
2022 2021
£fm £m
6.1p per share was paid for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021 : -no dividends were
paid) 54.4 -
Dividends 54.4 -
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15 Employment costs (before non-underlying items)

The aggregate payroll costs (including directors’ remuneration) were as follows:

Wages and salarics

Social security costs

Other post-employment benefit costs
Share-based payment expenses

Employment costs
Construction in progrcss
Discontinued employment costs

2022 2021
£m £fm
85.4 108.4
10.1 114
6.2 8.5

- 0.3
101.7 128.6
71.3 71.2
2.6 3.6
27.8 53.8
101.7 128.6

In addition to the above there are non-underlying employment costs of £2.0 million (2021: £2 4 million costs) as detailed under

note 7.

Details of transactions with key management personnel are sct out in note 37.

The average number of persons employed by the group (including directors) during the year, analysed by category was as

follows:

Operations
Administration and support
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16 Goodwill

£fm

Caost or valuation

At 1 April 2020 328.5
At 31 March 2021 328.5
At 1 April 2021 328.5
Disposals (11.9)
At 31 March 2022 3i6.6
Carrying amount

At 31 March 2022 316.6
At 31 March 2021 328.5

The goodwill for each Cash Gencrating Unit (CGU) group is reviewed annually for impairment, or more regularly where there
i1s a triggering event. Goodwill is monitored by management in accordance with the strategy of the business and at the
aggregation of CGUs - as follows

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

£fm £m

Runcorn IT ERF 46.1 46.1
Avonmouth ERF 442 442
Ardley ERF 40.3 40.3
Trident Park ERF 36.3 36.3
Other Encergy CGUs (2022: 9 CGUs, 2021:9 CGUs) 134.8 134.8
Waste (2022: nil CGUs, 2021: 2 CGU’s) - i1.9
Polymer (3 CGUs, 2021: 3 CGU's) 14.9 14.9
316.6 328.5

The disposals in the year relate to waste operations. The ongoing strategy is onc which is focussed on the ERF and Polymer
busincsses.

The recoverable amount of the ERF business has been assessed based on fair value by reference to transactions selling
minority interest stakes in the energy business (see notc 39 Non-adjusting events after the reperting period). The headroom
across the CGU’s £5.8 billion.

The recoverable amount of the Polymer CGUs have been assessed using a value in use methodology. The results of the tests
performed during the period demonstrate sufficient headroom and it is judged that no reasonable change in the key
assumptions would cause the carrying amount of the CGUs to exceed the recoverable amount. The headroom across the
CGU’s £73.1 million using a discount rate of 8%. Dectermining value in use, under IAS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’, requirc the
use of base cash flow projections that reflect reasonable and supportable assumptions with specific restrictions on the estimates
to be used. These include limitations on reflecting cash flows to take account of future cost restructuring, or improvement or
enhancement of asset performance. Uncommitted projects are excluded. The base cash flow projections have been derived
from detailed budget and strategic plan projections. These cover a period of five years and are prepared as part of the annual
ptanning cycle. These plans are based on detailed market-by-market forecasts of projected volumes, prices and costs for each
business activity. These forecasts reflect, on an individual operational site basis, numerous assumptions and estimates. The key
assumptions include anticipated changes in market size and volumes; recyclate prices and cost inflation. Management has
determined the value assigned to each assumption based on historical experience, market surveys, industry analysis and current
legislation. For an impairment to result in the Polymers division the discount rate would have to increase to 9%.
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17 Other intangible assets

Group
Service Other
concession intangible
arrangemernts assets Total
£m £m £fm
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2020 945 - 945
Additions 0.1 31 32
Transfers from noti-current receivables 6.5 - 6.3
At 31 March 2021 101.1 3.1 104.2
At 1 April 2021 101.1 3.1 104.2
Additions 0.6 13.3 13.9
Disposals (24) - (2.4)
At 31 March 2022 99.3 16.4 115.7
Amortisation
At 1 April 2020 7.6 - 7.6
Amortisation charge 2.6 - 2.6
Impairment 46.8 - 46.8
At 31 March 2021 57.0 - 57.0
At 1l April 2021 57.0 - 57.0
Amortisation charge 2.0 0.7 2.7
Amortisation eliminated on disposals (1.4) (0.1) {1.5)
At 31 March 2022 57.6 0.6 58,2
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2022 41.7 15.8 57.5
At 31 March 2021 44.1 3.1 47.2
At 1 April 2020 86.9 - 86.9

Service concession arrangements arc amortised over the useful life of each contract. The weighted average remaining life is 22
years (2021: 23 years).

Other intangible assets relate 10 computer software which was capitalised during the year. Software is amortised over the
useful life of the asset. The remaining life is 10 years.

The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed when events or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying amount
may not be fully recoverable. No indicators of impairment were identified during the ycar.
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18 Property, plant and equipment
There was no property, plant and equipment held by the Company during the year.

During the year borrowing costs of £1.2 million (2021: £3.3 million) have been capitalised (note 11) on qualifying asscts at an
average borrowing ratc of 4.7% (2021: 3.7%).

Groups of assets forming cash generating units are reviewed for indicators of impairment.

Group
Fixed and
mobile
plant, Assets
Land and vehicles and Landhill under
buildings computers restoration  construction Total
£m £m £m £m £fm
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2020 476.3 1,245.6 111.0 304.6 2,137.5
Additions 7.6 - - 110.7 118.3
Disposals (3.7) (41.4) - - (45.1)
Transfers/reclassifications - 447.2 - (274.0) 173.2
At 31 March 2021 480.2 1,651.4 111.0 141.3 2,383.9
At 1 April 2021 480.2 1,651.4 111.0 141.3 2,3839
Additions - 0.1 0.1 89.4 89.6
Disposals (469.0) (293.7) (111L.1) (15.8) (889.6)
Transfers/reclassifications 6.3 199.3 - (205.6) -
At 31 March 2022 17.5 1,557.1 - 9.3 1,583.9
Depreciation
At 1 April 2020 408.6 270.0 86.4 - 765.0
Charge for year 8.3 55.1 1.2 - 64.6
Eliminated on disposal 0.2) (36.4) - - (36.6)
Impairment - 12.5 - - 12.5
Transfers/reclassifications - 58.9 - - 589
At 31 March 2021 416.7 360.1 87.6 - 864.4
At 1 April 2021 416.7 360.1 87.6 - 864.4
Charge for the year 1.1 728 2.3 - 76.2
Eliminated on disposal {417.8) (211.8) (89.9) - (719.5)
Impairment - 10.9 - - 10.9
At 31 March 2022 - 232.0 - - 232.0
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2022 17.5 1,325.1 - 9.3 1,351.9
At 31 March 2021 63.5 1,291.3 23.4 141.3 1,519.5

The balance on transfers in the ptevious period relate to the transfer of leased assets to owned assets (notel9).
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19 Right of use assets

Group
Fixed and
mobile plant,
Land and vehicles and
buildings computers Total
£m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2020 84.2 193.8 278.0
Additions 5.7 10.8 16.5
Disposals (5.3) (8.2) (13.5)
Assets transferred to ownership - (173.2) (173.2)
At 31 March 2021 84.6 232 107.8
At 1 April 2021 84.6 232 107.8
Additions 0.3 4.8 5.1
Disposals _(33.8) {20.6) (54.4)
At 31 March 2022 5.1 7.4 58.5
Depreciation
At 1 April 2020 52 65.4 70.6
Charge for year 5.2 9.6 14.8
Eliminated on disposal (1.5) (6.4) (7.9
Assets transferred to ownership - (58.9) (58.9)
At 31 March 2021 8.9 9.7 18.6
At 1 April 202} 89 9.7 18.6
Charge for the ycar 3.5 43 7.8
Eliminated on disposal (6.4) (10.6) (17.0)
Impairment charge 3.8 - 38
At 31 March 2022 9.8 3.4 13.2
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2022 41.3 4.0 45.3
At 31 March 2021 75.7 13.5 89.2

The corresponding lease hiabilities are disclosed in note 29.

Short-term and low value lease rentals payable are disclosed in note 8.
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20 Financial instruments by category

Group
Fair value
through
income
Fair value Amortised cost statement
Derivatives Trade
used for reccivables
cash flow Debt and trade
hedging  instruments payables Derivatives Total
Note £m £fm f£fm £fm £m
31 March 2022
Financial assets
Trade receivables 25 - - 73.1 - 73.1
Derivative financial instruments 26 325 - - - 32.5
Cash and cash dcposits 27 - 174.6 - - 174.6
32.5 174.6 73.1 - 280.2
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 29 - (2,488.4) - - (2,488.4)
Trade and other payables 28 - - (37.4) - (37.4)
Derivative financial instruments 26 (248.9) - - (196.2) (445.1)
(248.9) (2,488.4) (37.4) (196.2) 2,970.9)
Fair value
through
income
Fair value Amortised cost statement
Derivatives Trade
used for receivables
cash flow Debt and trade
hedging instruments payables Derivatives Total
Note £m £fm £m £m £m
31 March 2021
Financial assets
Trade receivables 25 - 144.6 104.1 - 248.7
Other receivables 21,25 - 2545 14.5 - 274.0
Cash and cash deposits 27 - 106.2 - - 106.2
- 5103 118.6 - 628.9
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 29 - (1,560.3) - - (1,560.3)
Trade and other payables 28 - - (25.4) - (25.4)
Derivative financial instruments 26 {45.3) - - (1.4 (46.7)
{45.3) (1,560.3) (25.4) (1.4) (1,632.4)
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20 Financial instruments by category (continued)

Company
Amaortised cost
Trade
receivables
Debt and trade
instruments payables Total
Note £m £m £fm
31 March 2022
Financial assets
Trade receivables 21,25 1,315.6 - 1,315.6
1,315.6 - 1,315.6
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 28 - (113.9) (113.9)
- (113.9) (113.9)

Amortised cost

Trade
receivables
Debt and trade
instruments payables Total
Note £m £fm £m
31 March 2021
Financial assets
Trade receivables 21,25 467.1 6.4 4735
Cash and cash deposits 27 36 - 3.6
470.7 6.4 477.1
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 29 (1,292.1) - (1,292.1)
Trade and other payables 28 - (9.5) (9.5)
{1,292.1) (9.5) (1,301.6)
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21 Other non-current assets

Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note £m fm £m £m
Amounts due from rclated partics 37 1,708.0 543 1,315.6 360.2
Service concession arrangements 201.0 200.4 - -
Other prepayments and accrued income 11.4 3.1 - -
1,920.4 257.8 1,315.6 360.2

Non-current receivables were duc:

Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2922 2021 2022 2021
£fm £fm £m £m
Between | and 2 years 48.3 432 - 16.4
Between 2 and 5 years 128.1 127.9 - 49.1
Owver 5 years 1,744.0 86.7 1,315.6 2947
1,920.4 257.8 1,315.6 360.2

The fair valucs of the financial assets classified within other non-current asscts above are:

Group Company
3t March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £fm £fm
Amounts owed by related parties 1,441 4 65.5 1,102.3 338.7
1,441.4 65.5 1,102.3 338.7

The fair values are calculated on contractual cash flows discounted at prevailing interest rates plus an allowance to reflect an
appropriate credit margin. The weighted average interest rate on amounts owed by related parties was 12% (2021: 12%]).

Service concession arrangements

The Group has several service concession arrangements with local authority clients in the waste management sector to build
and operate recycling assets and energy recovery facilities. During the year, all the Group’s service concession arrangements
were in the operational phase, The arrangements are typically for 25 years and are for the provision of wasle management
services including the build and operation of recycling and energy recovery facilities. The assets revert to the local authority at
the end of the contract. At 31 March 2022 the weighted average remaining duration of the service concession arrangements
was 22 years. Under the arrangements, the Group maintains the recycling and energy recovery facilities (ERF) on an ongoing
basis throughout the life of the agreement to ensurc operational performance. The terms of the principal service concession
arrangement contracts, including pricing and petformance obligations are established at the outset. The service concession
arrangements are subject to annual indexation to take account of inflation. However, arrangements are not subject to formal
re-pricing or re-negotiation. The service concession arrangements do not centain renewal or termination options. These
contracts will, as is common, contain event of default termination clauscs for non-performance, but we do not consider it
reasonably foreseeable that these clauses will be put into effect.
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22 Investments in subsidiaries
Subsidiaries
Company

Cost
At | April 2020
Additions

At 31 March 2021
At 1 April 2021
Additions

At 31 March 2022
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2022
At 31 March 2021

411.7
1,541.9

1,953.6

1,953.6
130.3

2.083.9

2,083.9
1,953.6

In June 2021, Viridor Waste Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) issucd a £1 ordimary share to the Company

for consideration of £130.3 million.
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22 Investments in subsidiaries (continned)

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2022 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary Principal activity

Viridor Waste Limited * Holding Company
Viridor Enviroscot Limited ** Dormant
Raikes Lane Limited Dormant
Greater Manchester Sites Limited Dormant
Viridor Waste (Greater Manchester) Limited Dormant

Viridor Resource Management Limited *** Marketing and export of

Viridor Encrgy (Investments) Limited
Viridor Energy (Investments One) Limited
Viridor Energy (Investments Two ) Limited
Viridor Energy Investment Holding ple****
Viridor (Martock) Limited

Viridor Energy Group Limited****

Viridoer Energy (Developments) Limited
Viridor Polymer Holding Limited

Viridor Energy Holding (One) Limited
Viridor Energy Holding Limited

Viridor Waste (HP) Holding Limited

Viridor Waste (Sheffield) Limited

Viridor Tees Valley Limited

Viridor Waste (Atherton) Holdings Limited
Viridor Waste (Atherton) Limited

Viridor Energy Limited

Viridor Avonmouth Waste Services Limited
Viridor Exeter Waste Services Limited
Viridor Dunbar Waste Services Limited**
Viridor Oxfordshire Limited

Viridor Trident Park Limited

recycled materials

Holding company
Holding company
Financing company
Dormant

Dormant

Financing company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company

Wastc management
scrvices

Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant

Waste management
activities

Encrgy from waste
Energy from waste
Energy from waste
Encrgy from wastc
Energy from wastc
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Country

England
Scotland
Engtand
England
England

England

England
England
England
Jersey

England
Jersey

England
England
England
England

England

England
England
England
England

England

England
England
Scotland
England

England

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights

held

2022 2021
100.0% 100.0%
80.0% 100.0%
100.0% 100.0%
100.0% 100.0%
100.0% 100.0%
100.0% 100.0%
80.0% -%
80.0% -Yo
80.0% -%
80.0% -%

100.0% 100.0%

80.0% 100.0%
100.0% -%
100.0% -Yo
100.0% -Yo

100.0% -Yo

100.0% -%

100.0% 100.0%

100.0% -%

80.0% 100.0%
80.0% 100.0%
80.0% 100.0%
80.0% 100.0%
80.0% 100.0%
80.0% 100.0%
80.0% 100.0%
80.0% 1006.0%
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22 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights

Name of subsidiary Principal activity Country held

2022 2021
Viridor EfW (Runcorn) Limited Energy from waste England 80.0% 100.0%
Viridor Peterborough Limited Operation of encrgy England 80.0% 100.0%

from waste facility
under contract

Viridor (Glasgow) Limited ** Energy from waste Scatland 80.0% 100.0%
Viridor South London Limited Encrgy from waste England 80.0% 100.0%
Viridor Clyde Valley Limited ** Energy from waste Scotland 80.0% 100.0%
Viridor Polymer Recycling Limited Recycling of waste England 100.0% 100.0%

plastic materials

Viridor Avonmouth Polymers Recyceling Limited Dormant England 100.0% 100.0%

* indicates direct investment of the company.

The registered address for the companies above is Virtdor House, Priory Bridge Road, Taunton, Somerset, TA1 1AP except for
the following:

**  The registered address for these companies is 1 Exchange Crescent, Conference Square, Edinburgh, EH3 8UL.

*** The registered address for this company is First Floor Offices, Riverside House, Sir Thomas Longley Road, Medway
City, Rochester, ME2 4FN.

**+* The registered address for this company is 2nd Floor Sir Walter Raleigh House, 48-50 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE2
3QB.

All shares in issue are ordinary sharcs.
The subsidiaries that were not owned in the previous year are newly incorporated companies.

On 2 December 2021 the Group entered into a formal sale agreement with Equitix Virtue Bidco Limited to sell a 20% stake n
its subsidiary Viridor Energy (Investments) Limited - a Holding company for the Group's established Energy Recovery Facility
{ERF) opcrations. The sale completed on 31 January 2022.

The intraduction of a minority partner is not expected to impact upon the Group's opcrations or stratcgic direction.
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23 Investments in joint ventures

Joint ventures £m

Group

Cost or valuation

At | April 2020 60.1

Share of post-tax profit 16.0

Share of other comprehensive income 1.1

Drvidends received (7.9)
At 31 March 2021 69.3

At 1 April 2021 69.3

Share of post-lax profit 6.9

Dhvidends received (7.0)
At 31 March 2022 69.2

Carrying amount

At 31 March 2022 69.2

At 31 March 2021 69.3
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23 Investments in joint ventures (continued)
Details of the group joint ventures as at 31 March 2022 are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership
interest and
voting rights held

Name of Joint-ventures Principal activity Country 2022 2021
Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Energy from waste  England 50% 50%
Limited

INEOS Runcom (TPS) Holdings Limited Energy from waste  England 40% 40%
Ford Energy from Waste Limited Dormant England 50% 50%

» Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited
Share capital in issue:
1,000,000 A Ordinary shares
1,000,000 B Ordinary shares
Viridor Energy Limited owns 100% of the B Ordinary shares which equates to a 50% interest in the joint venture.
The registered office of Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited is: Thames House, Oxford Road, Benson,
Oxfordshire, OX10 6LX.

+ INEOS Runcoern (TPS) Holdings Limited
Share capital in issuc:
1,000 A Ordinary shares
186,750 B1 Ordinary shares
62,250 B2 Ordinary shares
Viridor Energy Limited owns 40% of the A Ordinary shares and 100% of the B1 Ordinary shares. The Group's economic
interest is 75.0% as returns from the investment are based on holdings of B1 and B2 ordinary shares.
The registercd oftice of INEOS Runcem (TPS) Holdings Limited is: PO Box 9, Runcom Site Hqg, South Parade, Runcom,
Cheshire, WA7 4JE.

*  Ford Energy from Waste Limited
Share capital in issue:
2 Ordinary sharcs
Viridor Energy (Developments) Limited owns 50% of the ordinary shares which equates to a 50% interest in the joint
venturc.
The registered office of Ford Encrgy from Waste Limited is: Thames House, Oxford Road, Benson, Oxfordshire, OX10
8LX.

The Group’s joint venmres are all private companies and theve are no quoted market prices available for their shares.
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23 Investments in joint ventures (continued)

Summarised information for the Group’s joint ventures:

31 March 2022

Summarised balance sheet
Non-current assets

Current assets - Cash

Current assets - Other

Current liahilities

Non-current liabilities - Financial liabilitics
Non-current liabilities - Qther

Nect asscts

Group's economic interest in JV

Group's carrying amount of investment

31 March 2021

Summarised balance sheet
Non-current assets

Current assets - Cash

Current asscts - Other

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities - Financial liabilities
Non-current liabilities - Other

Net assets

Group's economic interest in JV

Group's carrying amount of investment

Lakeside INEOS

Energy from  Runcorn (TPS) Ford Energy
Waste Holdings Holdings from Waste
Limited Limited Limited

£m £m £m

91.6 171.3 -

239 17.5 -

10.8 10.4 -

(4.9) (7.6) -

{69.9} (52.7) -

(34.2) (58.1) -

17.3 80.3 -

50.0% 75.0% 50.0%

8.6 60.6 -

Lakeside INEOS

Energy from  Runcorn (TPS) Ford Energy
‘Waste Holdings Holdings from Waste
Limited Limited Limited

£m £m £m

99.8 175.3 -

252 29.1 0.8

7.5 10.8 -

2.7 B.D -

(72.6) (70.0) -
(34.4) (64.9) (0.8)

22.8 77.2 -
50.0% 75.0% 50.0%

114 51.9 -
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23 Investments in joint ventures (continued)
31 March 2022

Summarised statement of comprehensive income/(loss)
Revenue

EBITDA
Depreciation and amortisation
Other net interest charge

Pre tax profit
Income tax expensg

Total comprehensive income

Dividends paid by joint venture

31 March 2021

Summarised statement of comprehensive income/(loss)
Revenue

EBITDA
Depreciation and amortisation
Other nct interest charge

Pre tax profit
Income tax expcnse
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Dividends paid by joint venture

Lakeside INEOS
Energy from  Runcorn (TPS)
Waste Holdings Holdings
Limited Limited
£fm £m

52.0 451

244 253
(8.5) (10.5)
(0.8) (7.7)

15.1 7.1
(6.6) (3.6)

8.5 3.5

(14.0) -
Lakeside INEOS
Energy from  Runcorn (TPS)
Waste Holdings Holdings
Limited Limited
£m £m

51.0 43.9

36.1 27.0
(8.5) (10.7)
(6.2) (5.9

21.4 10.4
4.4) {0.8)

2.2 -

19.2 9.6

{15.0) -

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statcments of the joint ventures, adjusted for differenccs
in accounting policies between the Group and the joint ventures. The information reflects 100% of the joint ventures results

and net liabilities,
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24 Inventories

Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
£fm £fm fm £m
Raw materials and consumables 394 370 - -
25 Trade and other receivables
Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note £m £m £fm £m
Trade receivables 74.0 106.8 - 6.4
Allowance for expected credit losses (0.9) (2.7) - -
Net tradc reccivables 73.1 104.1 - 6.4
Receivables from related parties 37 9.6 839 8.7 -
Loans reccivable from related parties 37 9.1 6.4 - 106.9
Service conccssion arrangements 32.7 59.1 - -
Other receivables 130.4 80.0 - 0.2
2549 333.5 8.7 113.5

Other receivables include £60.0m receivable for the sale of the landfill and landfill gas business which completed on 31 March

2022 (note 6).

No material credit loss provision has been recognised in rclation to amounts owed by the parent undertaking, the joint ventures

or other receivables balances.

The Directors consider that the carying armounts of trade and other receivables approximate to their fair value.

The Group applies the simplificd approach in calculating the expected credit losses for trade receivables allowing a provision
matrix to be used which is based on the expected life of trade receivables. The expected credit loss rate applied ranges from 0%
for not due balances up to 100% for balances aged over 120 days. However there are exceptions, for example wherc a
customer has gone into liquidation a provision will be made regardless of ageing, or conversely if a customer is a major
corporate or local authority with no history of default, a provision might not be considered appropriatc.

Trade receivables above include amounts {detailed below) that are past due at the end of the reporting period and which an
allowance for doubtful debts has not been recognised as the amounts are still considered recoverable and there hasn't been a

significant change in credit quality.

Age of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired

Not past due

Past due 1 to 30 days

Past due 31 to 120 days

Past due more than 120 days

Group

31 March 31 March
2022 2021

£m £m

57.9 96.7

8.1 2.7

5.8 2.8

1.3 1.9

73.1 104.1

There is no significant concentration of credit risk in trade receivables. The Group has a large number of customers who are
dispersed and there is no expectation of a significant loss on trade receivables which have not been provided for.
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25 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Group

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

£fm £m

At start of ycar 27 29
Tncrease/(reduction) in provision for expected credit losses (1.0) 0.8
Disposals (0.8) -
Receivables written-off during the year as uncollectable - (1.0)
At end of year 0.9 2.7

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic a detailed expected credit logs review has been undertaken. Economic and credit
conditions are worsening; however, the UK Government continue to implement economic measures te support the wider
cconomy, therefore as at 31 March 2022 no specific credit losses were provided due 10 COVID-19.
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26 Derivative financial instruments

Non-current financial assets
Derivatives used for cash flow hedging

Current financial assets
Derivatives used for cash flow hedging

Non-current financial liabilities
Derivatives used for cash flow hedging
Derivatives not used in a hedge accounting relationship

Current financial liabilities
Derivatives used for cash flow hedging
Derivatives not used in a hedge accounting relationship

The periods for which the cash flow hedges are expected to affect future profits and losscs are as follows:

Assets

Derivatives used for cash flow hedging
Within one year

One o twp years

Two to five years

After five years

Liabilities

Derivatives used for cash flow hedging
Within onc year

One to two years

Two to five years

After five years

Group

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

£m £m

284 -
Group

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

£m £m

4.1 -
Group

31 March 31 March

2622 2021

£fm £fm

(245.0) (43.8)

(72.9) (0.8)

(317.9) (44.6)
Group

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

£m £m

3.9 (1.5)

{123.3) (0.6)

(127.2) (2.1)
Group

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

£m £m

4.1 -

9.1 -

13.0 -

6.3 -

32.5 -
Group

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

£m £fm

39 1.5

9.1 2.0

350 8.7

200.9 33.1

248.9 45.3
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26 Derivative financial instruments {continued)

The Group's financial risks and risk management policies are set out in note 4. The fair value of derivatives is split between
current and non-current assets or ligbilities based on the maturity of the cash flows. The ineffective portion recognised in the
income statement arising from hedging relationships was £nil (2021: £nil).

During the year a £0.1 million credit (2021: £0.1 million credit) was recognised in profit and loss relating to cash flow hedges
previously recognised through other comprehensive income and recorded in the hedging reserve. A £171.2 million charge
(2021: £13.5 million charge) was recognised as other comprehensive income for cash flow hedges that may be classificd
subsequently to profit and loss.

Interest rate swaps and fixed rate borrowings are used to manage the mix of fixed and floating rates to ensure at least 85% of
Group net borrowings are at fixed rate. At 31 March 2022, 97% of Group aet borrowings were at fixed rate. At 31 March 2022,
the Group had interest rate swaps to swap from floating to fixed rate and hedge financial liabilities with a notional value of
£702 million (2021: £2,058 million) and a weighted average maturity of 4.0 years (2021: 6.9 years). The weighted average
interest rate of the swaps for their nominal amount was 0.93% (2021: 0.53%).

RPI swaps are used to manage the inflation risk embedded in certain long-term contracts. As of 31 March 2022, the Group had
RPI swaps to swap from RPI to fixed ratc and hedge futurc cash flows with a notional value of £1,747 million (2021: £1,178
million) and a weighted average maturity of 7.57 years {2021: 7.1 years). The weighted average annual RP1 value of the swaps
for their nominal amount was 3.1 1% (2021: 2.97%).

Fair value measurement
The group uses a valuation methodology to estimate fair values, as explained in notc 4.
The amounts above are at the fair value of financial instruments using level 2 inputs that are observable for the asset or

liability, cither directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices). The fair values of thesc instruments are
based on the market value of equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date.
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27 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank

Group

31 March
2922

£m

174.6

31 March
2021

£m

106.2

Company

31 March
2022
fm

31 March
2021

£

3.6

Cash at bank has an average maturity of one working day.

Other deposits comprise sums due to the Group pending completion of obligations arising from its opcrations under lease and

other agreements.

28 Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Contract liabilities

Amounts due to related parties
Social sccurity and other taxes
Accruals and other payables

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payablcs approximates to their fair value.

Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note £m £m £m £m
24.1 21.1 24 -
0.2 10.3 - -
37 13.3 43 111.5 9.5
14.0 48.6 1.7 2.6
91.0 709 2.2 5.6
142.6 155.2 117.8 17.7

Contract liabilities are recognised when consideration is received in advance of the Group performing its obligations to
customers. The movement in the contract liabilitics was:

At 1 April

Revenue recognised in the year

Consideration received in advance of completion of performance obligations

At 31 March

Group
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
£m £m
10.3 9.7
(10.1) (9.7
- 10.3
0.2 10.3

All current coniract liabilitics are expected 1o be satisfied and revenue recognised within the financial year ending 31 March

2023,
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29 Loans and borrowings

Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note £fm £m £m £m
Current loans and borrowings
External borrowings 477 - - -
Lease liabilities 3.4 10.4 - -
Amounts due to related parties 37 6.0 10.2 - 31.3
57.1 20.6 - 313
Non-current loans and borrowings
External borrowings 2,380.7 - - _
Lease liabilities 50.6 86.5 - -
Amounts due to related parties 37 - 1,453.2 - 1,260.8
2,431.3 1,539.7 - 1,260.8
Total borrowings 2,488.4 1,560.3 - 1,292.1
Cash and cash deposits 27 (174.6) {106.2) - (3.6)
Net borrowings 2,3]3.8 1,454.1 - 1,288.5

The fair value of current borrowings equals their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

The terms and conditions associated with the external borrowings are disclosed in note 4.

The maturity of non-current borrowings was:

Group Company

2022 2022

Leases Other Total Total

£fm £m £m £fm

Between 1 and 2 years 3.1 70.4 735 -
Between 2 and 5 years 54 2282 233.6 -
QOver 5 years 422 2.082.0 2,124.2 -
50.7 2,380.6 2,431.3 -
Group Company

2021 2021

Leases Other Total Total

£m fm £m £m

Between | and 2 years 13.9 - 13.¢ -
Between 2 and 5 years 10.5 - 10.5 -
Over 5 years 62.1 1,453.2 1,515.3 1,260.8
86.5 1,453.2 1,539.7 1,260.8

The weighted average maturity of non-current borrowings was 18 years (2021: 15 years).
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29 Loans and borrowings (continued)

The fair values of non-current borrowings were:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value
Group Note £fm £m £m £m
External borrowings 2,380.6 2,465.3 - -
Lcasc liabilities 50.7 50.7 86.5 86.5
Amounts due to related parties 37 - - 1,453.2 1,904.3
2,431.3 2,516.9 1,539.7 1,990.8
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value
Company Note £m £fm £fm £m
Amounts due to related parties 37 - - 1,260.8 1,695.4

The fair values of non-current borrowings arc calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates.

The changes in borrowings from fnancing activities were:

1 April Accrued 31 March

2021 Cash flows interest Other 2022

Group £m £m £m £m £m
Current lease liabilitics 10.4 (11..9) 0.3 4.7 3.5
Non-current lease liabilities 86.5 - 2.0 (37.8) 50.7
Current external borrowings - - - 477 477
Non-current external borrowings - 2,403.9 - (83.3) 2,380.6
Cutrent parent company loans 10.2 - - (10.2) -
Non-current parent company loans 1,453.2 (1,447.2) - - 6.0
1,560.3 1,004.8 2.3 (78.9) 2,488.5

1 April Accrued 31 March

2020 Cash flows interest Other 2021

£m £m £m £fm £m

Current lease liabilities 19.0 (23.5) 0.3 14.6 10.4
Non-current lease liabilities 2294 - 6.0 (148.9) 86.5
Non-current external borrowings 1,199.5 40.0 431 170.6 1,453.2
Current parent company loans - - - 10.2 10.2
1,447.9 16.5 49.4 46.5 1,560.3

The 'Other' column includes the disposal of liabilities relating to discontinued activitics (sce note 6), the netting of balanccs
payable against balances reccivable, the effect of reclassification of non-current portion of borrowings and debt issue cost
movements within external borrowings.

The Group classifies intercst paid as cash flows from operating activities.
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30 Other non-current liabilities

Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m
Contract liabilities - 6.3 - _
Other payables - 6.8 - -
- 13.1 - -

Contract liabilitics are recognised when consideration is reccived in advance of the Group performing its obligations to
customers. The movement in the non-current contract liabilities was:

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

£m £m

At 1 April 6.3 69
Disposals (6.3) -
Non-current contract liability becoming current - (0.6)
At 31 March - 6.3

Non-current contract liabilities are expected to be satisfied and revenue recognised on the following profile:

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

£m £fm

1 to 5 years - 4.0
After 5 years - 2.3
At 3] March - 6.3

Page 80



DocuSign Envelope ID: C5961938-0975-4215-99CF-6D66EBDE23C5
Yiridor Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

31 Pension and other schemes
The following amounts refer only to the Group. The Company has no employees.
The Group participates in both defined contribution and defined benefit pension schemes.

During the year the Group operated defined benefit schemes relating to employment rights in its wholly owned subsidiaries,
Viridor Waste (Somerset) Limited and Viridor Waste (Greater Manchester) Limited. The assets of the pension schemes are
held in separate trustee administered funds. The trustees of the funds arc required to act in the best interest of the funds’
beneficiaries. The appointment of schemes’ trustees is determined by the schemes’ trust documentation.

Defined contribution pension scheme
Pension costs for the defined contribution scheme was £6.3 million (2021: £7.9 million) of which £0.4 million was accrucd at
31 March 2022 ( 2021; £0.8 million).

Defined benefit pension schemes

During the ycar, as part of the sale of our collections business and a number of recycling asscts to Biffa Waste Services
Limited, onc the Group’s two defined benefit pcnsion schemes, including full responsibility for the related assets and
lizbilities, was transferred 1o Biffa Waste Services Limited. As a result of the transfer the Group recognised a settlement loss of
£1.8 million, which represented the scheme assets at the datc of transfer.

During 2021, as part of the Group’s acquisition by KKR, a significant proportion of the Group’s defined benefit pension
schemes, including full responsibility for the related assets and habilities, were transferred to Pennon Group ple. As a result of
the transfer the Group recognised 2 non-underlying settlement gain of £32.5 million, which represented the sum of the
respective scheme deficits at the date of transfer. As part of the transaction noted above, Pennon Group plc contributed a
one-off lump payment to a scheme of £2.8 million. Further details of these non-underlying items are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements.

The disclosures below reflect the single scheme in which the Group participated at the reporting date.
Principal actuarial assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions used to determinc the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the statement of
financial position date are as follows:

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

% %

Discount rate 2.70 2.00
Future salary increases 3.50 3.10
Future pension increases 3.50 3.00
Inflation 4.10 3.60

Post retirement mortglity assumptions

Assumptions regarding future mertality experience are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and
experience. The mortality assumption uses a scheme-specific calculation based on CMI 2018 actuarial tables with an
allowance for fulure longevity improvement.

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

Years Years

Cuitent UK pensioners at retirement age - male 22.40 22.40
Current UK pensioners at retirement age - female 24.10 24.10
Future UK pensioners at retirement age - male 21.50 21.50
Future UK pensioners at retirement age - female 25,60 25.60
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31 Pension and other schemes (continued)

Reconciliation of scheme assets and liabilities to assets and liabilities recognised

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
£m £m
Fair value of scheme assets 88.6 89.5
Present value of scheme liabilities (88.6) (89.5)
Defined benefit pension scheme surplus/(deficit) - -
Scheme assets
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets arc as follows:
31 Miarch 31 March
2022 2021
£m £m
Fair value at start of year 89.5 242.4
Interest income 1.7 2.5
Retumn on plan asscts, excluding amounts included in interest income/{cxpense) 5.7 29.6
Employer contributions 0.1 0.8
Benefits paid - 2.1)
Assets distributed on settiements (8.4) (186.5)
Special employer contribution from Pennon Group ple - 2.8
Fair value at end of ycar 88.6 89.5
Scheme liabilities
Changcs in the present value of scheme liabilities are as follows:
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
£m £m
Present value at start of year 895 2575
Currcnt service cost 0.1 0.5
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions - (1.4
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (2.2) 54.8
Actuarial gains and losses arising from expericnce adjustments {0.9) 3.0
Interest cost 1.4 2.2
Bencfits paid - 2.1
Liabilitics extinguished on settlements (6.6) (219.0)
Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit assct to the asset ceiling 7.3 2.1
Present value at end of ycar 38.6 89.5

The pension scheme has not invested in any of the company’s own financial instruments or in properties or other assets used by
the company.
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31 Pension and other schemes (continued)

Effect of asset ceiling

At 31 March 2022, the Group has one (2021: two) pension scheme in surplus. However, this surplus is deemed irrccoverable m
accordance with [FRIC 14 "The Limit on Defined Benefit Asset Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction’.

A reconciliation of the effect of the asset ceiling is as follows: 2022

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

£m £fm

Opening balance 16.2 141
[ntcrest cost 03 0.3
Disposal of scheme in surplus (0.9 -
Actuarial gains 7.9 1.8
Closing balance 23.5 16.2

Risks

Through the defined benefit pensions plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, of which the most financially
significant are likely to be:

Investment risk
Lower than expected investment returns

Salary risk
Higher than expected actual inflation and salary increase experience

Life expectancy risk
Members living for longer than expected

Net deficit
The risk that movements in the Plan’s liabilitics are not met by corresponding movements in the value of asscts

Sensitivity analysis

The scnsitivity analysis is intended to provide an indication of the impact on Plan's liabilities of the risks highlighted and werc
calculated using approximate methods taking into account the duration of the plans liabilities.

A sensitivity analysis for the principal assumptions used to measure scheme liabilities is set out below:

Change in assumption Impact on schemes’ liabilities

Rate of increase in pensionable pay +/-0.5% n/a
Rate of increase for current and future pensions +/-0.5% +/-8.4%
Rate used to discount schemes” liabilitics +/-0.5% -1+8.4%
Inflation +/-0.5% +/-8.4%
Life expectancy +/-1 year +/-4.5%
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31 Pension and other schemes (continued)

Asset investment strategies
In conjunction with its investment adviscrs, the trustees invest the vast majority of the Section’s assets in a mixture of cquities,
diversified growth sceking assets, multi credit and liability driven investments, in order o strikc a balance betwecen:

» Maximising the returns on the assets, and
« Minimising the risks associated with the lower than expected returns on the assets.

The trustees regularly review their investment strategy in light of revised terms and nature of the liabilities.

The major categories of scheme assets are as follows:

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

£m £m

Equity instruments 611 53.1
Debt instruments 14.2 19.4
Diversificd growth - 1.7
Property 7.1 7.4
Other 6.2 159
88.6 89.5

Other asscts at 31 March 2022 represented holdings of low risk assets including gilts and cash.

Other relevant matters

The liabilities of the defined benefit schemes are measured by using the projected unit method which is an accrued benefits
valuation method in which the scheme liabilities make allowance for projected increascs in pensionablc pay.

The futurc cash flows arising from the payment of the defined benefits are expected to be scttled primarily in the period
between 15 and 40 years from the balance shect date.
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32 Other provisions

Group
Environmental
and landfill Other
restoration provisions Total
£fm £m £m

At 1 April 2021 142.9 37.4 180.3
Increase (decreasc) in cxisting provisions 12.3 (0.6) 11.7
Decrease (increase) through disposals (147.1) (5.0) (152.1)
Provisions used {8.1) (24.9) {33.0)
At 31 March 2022 - 6.9 6.9
Non-current liabilities - 2.9 2.9
Current liabilities - 4.0 4.0

Other provisions

Other provisions include amounts provided by the Group in relation to nuisance claims and potential claims under sale and
purchase agreements which are considered to be the best estimate of the amounts that might be finally settled. The expected
cash outflow is within the next 12 months and there is no disclosure of the assumptions on the basis that further disclosure
could be detrimental to Viridor, Other provisions also include provisions for dilapidations.

33 Share capital

Allotted, called up and fully paid shares

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
No.m £m No.m £fm
Ordinary shares of £1 each 898.2 898.2 898.2 898.2

New shares allotted
During the year 1 Qrdinary sharcs of £1 cach was allotted for an aggregate considcration of £130.3 million, creating £130.3
million of share premium.
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34 Share-based payments
Management Equity Plan

Scheme details and movements

Executive directors and senior management receive B ordinary shares of £0.01 in the c¢apital of Planets Topco Limited. The B
shares as a class comprise a non-voting 6.64% interest in the ordinary equity of Planets Topco Limited and they rank pari passu
with the ordinary A shares. The shares can be subscribed by means of a management loan.

The vesting period is the time between the service commencemcnt date and the vesting date, which is considered when there is
a change of control transaction or the transfer of at least 50% of thc Viridor Limited group. The scheme is equity scitled with
no choice or history of cash settlement.

Subscription monies received are held in a bare trust on behalf of Planets Topco Limited.

The movements in the number of share aptions during the year were as follows:

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

Number Number

At 1 April 30,897.0 -
Granted during the period 33,904.0 30,897.0
At 31 March 64,801.0 30,897.0

The movements in the weighted average exercisc price of share options during the year were as follows:

31t March 31 March

2022 2021

Pence Pence

At 1 April 90.36 -
Granted during the period 93.00 $0.36
At 31 March 91.74 90.36

Fair value of options granted

The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using a Monte Carlo option pricing/valuation model, taking
into account the terms and conditions on which the share options were granted. The fair value of the shares granted during the
year was 655.1p (2021: 436.7p). and the main inputs are set out in the table below.

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

Expected volatility (%) 22.00 20.00
Option life in years 5.10 5.90
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.70 0.20

The charge for the year is £4.3m.
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35 Contingent liabilities

Group
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
fm £fm
Performance bonds - 160.5
- 160.5

The Group's performance bonds largely related to the landfill business which was divested within the year. All bonding
arrangements in relation to that business stream were transferred to the buyer.

The group cstablishes provisions in connection with contracts and litigation where it has a present legal obligation as a result of
past cvents and where it is more likely than not an outflow of resources will be required te settie the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated.

Other contractual and litigation uncertainties
A possible obligation exists refating to a potential claim for construction related activity at a plant. There is no disclosure of the
assumptions for the contingent liability on the basis that further disclosure could be detrimental to the Group.

In connection with the application of the audit exemption provided by Scction 479A, under Section 479C of the Companics
Act 2006 the Company has guaranteed all the outstanding liabilities as at 31 March 2022 of the following subsidiaries, since
these companies qualify for cxemption:

= Viridor Waste Limited

= Viridor Energy (Investments) Limited

* Viridor Waste (HP) Holding Limited

« Viridor Waste (Greater Manchester) Limited
+ Raikes Lane Limited

« Viridor Energy Holding Limited

+ Viridor Encrgy Holding (One) Limited
« Viridor Energy {Developments} Limited
= Viridor Polymer Holding Limited

= Viridor Resource Management Limited
= Viridor Polymer Recycling Limited
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36 Commitments

Group

Capital commitments

The total amount contracted for but not provided in the financial statements was £1.0 million (2021: £73.4 million).

37 Related party transactions

Key management personnel

Key management have been determined to be the Executive Leadership Team (ELT) by virtue of their authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activitics of the Group. This includes statutory dircctors of the Group.
{2021: Key management were considered to be the statutory dircctors who held office during the accountng period).

. 2022 2021

Key management compensation £fm £m
Short-term employee benefits 35 29
Post-employment benefits 0.1 -
Other long-term benefits - 0.4
Sharc-bascd payment - 0.6
3.6 3.9

The cost of share-based payments rcpresents the amount charged to the income statement.
During the year nine key management persontiel were members of the Group’s defined contribution pension scheme (2021:
nil).

In respect of the highest paid director:

2022 2021
£m £m

Total amount of emoluments and amounts (excluding shares) reccivable under long
term incentive schemes 1.0 0.8
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37 Related party transactions (continued)

During the year, the Group companies entered into transactions with reiated parties who are not members of the Group. The
related party categorisation is based upon the the relationship that existed as at 31 March ["Parent” relates to both direct and
indirect parent companies].

Income and receivables from related parties
Related party sales of goods and services are undertaken at normal commercial terms and conditions that would also be
available to unrelated third parties.

The "Parent' provision of loan finance reccivables represents loans due for repayment by 2032, Interest is charged at 2.5% ~
Sonia.

The provision of joint venture finance receivables represent loans duc for repayment through to 2034, Interest is charged at an
average rate of 12% (2021: 12%)).

Group
Total Parent Joint ventures
2022 Note £m £m £m
Income statement transactions:
Salc of goods and services 28.5 - 28.5
Income trom provision of loan finance 11 6.8 - 6.8
353 - 353
Statement of financial position balances:
Current
Amounts receivable from parent - trading balance 25 9.6 - 9.6
Amount receivable from parent - provision of loan finance 25 9.1 - 9.1
Non-current
Amount receivable from parent - provision of loan finance 28 1,708.0 1,669.8 38.2
Total Parent Joint ventures
2021 Note £fm £m £fm
Income statement transactions:
Salc of goods and services 14.8 - 14.8
Income from provision of loan finance 11 5.5 0.2 5.3
20.3 0.2 20.1
Statement of financial position balances:
Current
Amounts receivable from related patty - trading balance 25 83.9 81.8 2.1
Amounts receivable from related party - provision of loan
finance 25 6.4 - 6.4
Mon-current
Amount receivable from rclated party - provision of loan
finance 21 54.3 - 54.3
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37 Related party transactions {continued)

Expenditure with and payables to related parties

Group
Related party expenditure in relation to goods and services are undertaken at normal commercial terms and conditions that
would also be available to unrelated third parties.

Charges for management services are provided at cost.

Total Parent Joint ventures
2022 Note £m £m £m
Income statement transactions:
Purchase of goods 20.2 - 20.2
Dividends paid 54.4 54.4 -
Payments for provision of loan financc il 18.8 18.8 -
93.4 73.2 20.2
Statement of financial position balances:
Current
Amounts payable to rclated party - trading balance 28 13.3 9.6 3.7
Amounts payable to related party - provision of loan
finance 29 6.0 6.0 -
Total Parent Joint ventures
2021 Note £fm fm £m
Income statement transactions:
Purchasc of goods 20.9 - 209
Payments for provision of loan finance 11 39.5 39.5 -
60.4 39.5 209
Statement of financial position balances:
Current
Amounts payable to related party - trading balance 28 4.3 - 4.3
Amounts payable to related party - provision of loan
finance 29 10.2 10.2 -
Non-current
Amounts payable to related party - provision of loan
finance 29 1,453.2 1,453.2 -
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37 Related party transactions (continued)

Income and receivables from related parties - Company
Related party sales of goods and services are undertaken at normal commercial terms and conditions that would also be
available to unrelated third parties.

The provision of loan finance receivables relate to the provision of working capital to fellow subsidiaries of Planets UK Midco
Limited and interest is charged at 2.5% + Sonia. This is due for repayment by 2032.

Total Parent Subsidiary
2022 Note £m £m £m
Income statement transactions:
Dividends recetved 2,126.6 - 2,126.6
Income from provision of loan finance 11 13.7 13.7 -
2,140.3 13.7 2,126.6
Statement of financial position balances:
Current
Amounts receivable from related party - trading balance 25 8.7 3.9 4.8
Non-current
Amount receivable from related party - provision of loan
finance 21 1,315.6 1,3154 0.2
Total Parent Subsidiary
2021 Note £m £m £m
Income statement transactions:
Dividends received 50.0 - 50.0
Income from provision of loan finance 11 16.6 - 16.6
66.6 - 66.6
Statement of financial position balances:
Current
Amounts receivable from related party - provision of loan
finance 25 106.9 81.3 25.6
Non-current
Amount receivable from related party - provision of loan
finance 21 360.2 - 360.2
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37 Related party transactions (continued)

Expenditure with and payables to related parties - Company
Related party expenditure in relation to goods and services are undertaken at normal commercial terms and conditions that
would also be available to unrelated third parties.

The provision of loan finance payables relate to the provision of funding from fellow subsidiaries of Planets UK Midco
Limited to support capital projects across the Group. Intcrest is charged at fixed rates between 1.1% and 6.75% and the loans
are due for final repayment between 31/03/2036 and 31/03/2045.

Total Parent Subsidiary
2022 Note £m £m £m
Income statement fransactions:
Dividends paid 54.4 54.4 -
Payment for provision of loan finance 11 3.1 31! -
85.5 85.5 -
Statement of financial position balances:
Current
Amoutts payable to related party - trading balance 28 111.5 - 111.5
Total Parent Subsidiary
2021 Note £m £m £fm
Income statement transactions:
Payment for provision of loan finance 11 0.1 - 0.1
0.1 - 0.1
Statement of financial position balances:
Current
Amounts payable to related party - trading balance 28 9.5 - 95
Amounts payable to rclated party - provision of lean finance 29 31.3 - 31.3
40.8 - 40.8
Non-current
Amounts payable to related party - provision of lean finance 29 1,260.8 1,260.8 -
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38 Pareat and ultimate parent undertaking
The company's immediate parent is Planets UK Bidco Limited.

The most senior parent entity producing publicly available financial statements is Plancts UK Midco Limited. These financial
statements are available upon request from 11th floor, 200 Aldersgate Street, London, United Kingdom, EC1A 4HD.

The ultimate controlling party is KKR Plancts Aggregator L.P. by virtue of its sharcholding in Planets Topco Limited.

39 Non adjusting events after the financial period

Dividends
On 22 July 2022 the Company paid a dividend of £125.0m to its shareholders.

Sate of non-controlling interests

On 31 March 2022 Viridor Waste Limited {a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a formal sale agreement
to selt 5% of the ordinary share capital of Viridor Energy (Investments) Limited to GCM (Cayman) Holdings Two L.P. The
transaction completed on 11 April 2022 for consideration of £125.2m.

On 30 Junc 2022 Viridor Waste Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) cntered into a formal sale agreement to
sell 2.5% of the ordinary share capital of Viridor Energy (Investments) Limited to TcorpiM Unlisted Infrastructure Fund. The
transaction completed on 07 July 2022 for consideration of £63.3m.

On 30 June 2022 Viridor Waste Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a formal sale agreement 10
sell 1.2% of the ordinary share capital of Viridor Energy (Investments) Limited to Equitix V Virtue Bideo Limited. The
transaction completed on 08 July 2022 for consideration of £29.5m.
On 30 Junc 2022 Viridor Waste Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) cntered into a formal sale agreement to
sell 1.3% of the ordinary sharc capital of Viridor Energy (Investments) Limited to Equitix Virtue Bidco Limited. The
transaction completed on 08 July 2022 for consideration of £33 8m.

Following these transactions the Group retained a 76% interest in Viridor Energy (Investments) Limited.

Page 93



